
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday, 17th December, 2019
at 2.30 pm. (Drawing Room)

Site Visits

There are no site visits.

A G E N D A

PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  



5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 26th November, 2019.

3 - 18

7.  Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)  19 - 28

FOR DECISION 

(D) 8.  Planning Applications (Booklets attached) 
 

29 - 98

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

INVITATIONS TO SPEAK TO THE COMMITTEE (2.30 pm.)

Membership of Committee

Councillors Assouad
Burley
D. Edwards
Gawne
Hall
Husband
McEwan
Mooney
Nott
Seward
C. Thomson (Chairman)
M. A. Thomson (Vice-Chair)

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer (Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Monday 9th December, 2019



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday 26th November, 2019
at 2.30 pm. (Drawing Room)

PRESENT:- Councillors C. Thomson (Chair), Assouad, Hall, Husband, McEwan, 
McLeavy, Mooney, Ronson and Seward.

Officers Present:- Jason Hipkiss (Development Services Manager - Planning), 
Maureen Smith (Principal Planning Officer), Paula Westwood (Democratic Services 
Officer - Member Support) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer).

77 – Declarations of Interest

Councillor Hall declared an interest in planning application 2019/0567 - Lisdoone 
Hotel, Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness (Minute No. 84) as one of the objectors was 
well known to him.  He left the meeting during consideration of the application.

Councillor McEwan declared an interest in any matter relating to Cumbria County 
Council as he was a Member of that Council.  

78 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Burley, D. Edwards and 
M. A. Thomson (Vice-Chair).

Councillors McLeavy and Ronson had attended as substitutes for Councillors Burley 
and D. Edwards respectively for this meeting only.

79 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 29th October, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

80 – Uploading of Local Validation Criteria

The Planning Manager (Planning & Enforcement) submitted a report regarding the 
requirement to update local validation criteria.  He explained that in 2008, 
Government had introduced a requirement for Planning Authorities to adopt 
validation documents in order to streamline the planning application process.  The 
documents informed applicants of the nature and level of supporting information 
required when submitting an application.  The objective had been to introduce 
greater clarity and certainty for applicants, as well as some improvement in the 
quality and consistency of the information available to Planning Authorities.  The 
introduction of validation criteria had also been a part of the Government’s increasing 
emphasis on the speed of determination and delivery of projects.  

He informed the Committee that under the current legislation, the Planning Authority 
were required to monitor and update their validation criteria at least every two years 
in order to take account of changes to national guidance and legislation, as well as 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



local changes such as the adoption of a new Development Plan.  He added that 
validation was the first stage when determining an application and it was therefore a 
crucial part of the process.  In order for the process to work, it was important for 
applicants, especially agents, to engage in the process and as such, Officers 
directed enquirers to the list in order to minimise delays and, in some extreme cases, 
to avoid disposal of the submission before registration.

Paragraph 44 of the updated NPPF advises that in addition to the national 
requirements, Planning Authorities should publish a local list of the contemporary 
validation criteria for the registration of planning applications.  The purpose of the list 
was to provide applicants with guidance as to what supporting information was 
needed to make an application, thus avoiding disputes as to what supporting 
material was required.  It also sought both to improve the quality of submissions and 
reduce delays in the registration and determination of applications.  These 
documents can be found on the Council’s website and Planning Hub.

A sample of the amended list for a full planning application had been appended to 
the report.  It had been noted that this would form the template for the remaining 
validation checklists covering a variety of subjects such as listed buildings, 
advertisements, and works to trees.  It had also been noted that the instructions had 
been improved and there had been revisions to the nature, format and type of 
supporting information that may be required when submitting an application.

The Planning Manager advised the Committee that there were a number of 
documents within the list, each related to a specific type of application.  Some by 
necessity were quite detailed, such as the criteria for listed buildings and heritage 
assets, whilst others were broader in scope such as the one for full applications.  He 
added that the success of the scheme would be dependent upon the continued 
pragmatism and professional judgement of Officers.

The Committee had been requested to endorse the validation criteria to form part of 
the consultation exercise.  It had been noted that the draft lists would be uploaded to 
the Council’s website and Planning Hub during the week commencing 2nd 
December, 2019 as part of the public and statutory undertaker consultation exercise.  
To allow for the Christmas break, the final documents would be uploaded in January 
2020.  In order to minimise delays, the Planning Manager had recommended that 
any changes be delegated to him.

RESOLVED:- (i)  To endorse the validation criteria to form part of the consultation 
exercise; and

(ii)  To agree to delegate powers to the Planning Manager to make any changes 
arising from the consultation exercise in order for their adoption and publication in 
January, 2020.

81 – Enforcement Update Report

The Planning Enforcement Officer submitted a report providing an update on 
enforcement activity and investigation over the period January – November 2019.  
His report had provided detailed updates in respect of the many enforcement issues 

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



but had been reported in a broad fashion in order to protect specific vulnerable 
individuals.

During the period, 45 formally recorded complaints had been investigated.  This had 
been in addition to a significant number of enquiries and calls for service from the 
general public and internal partners that had been resolved through voluntary action.  
Frequent low level referrals from Elected Members had been similarly undertaken.  
By using prompt, holistic responses and interventions, Officers had assisted to 
identify effective solutions to remedy harm before situations escalated.  There had 
been a wide range of different cases to consider.

It had been noted that most cases had been resolved by negotiation.  Issues relating 
to parking, boundary disputes and neighbour conflict were ever present.  These 
would not be prioritised as the vast majority were not planning related, but were civil 
matters.  Where appropriate, complainants had been and would continue to be 
redirected to the relevant body.

There had been six cases where retrospective planning applications had been 
invited and had either been determined or were currently under consideration.

Untidy land cases varied in severity and their respective impact on amenity.  Over 
the period, seven formally recorded cases had been investigated and six concluded.

The Authority had issued three Section 215 Notices during the period.

In summary, the service continued to function and respond in line with the current 
resource allocations.  The level of legal intervention had been minimised in order to 
protect the public purse, yet many cases had been resolved by voluntary action and 
redirection to the appropriate bodies.  Furthermore, relationships had been 
established with external agencies which enabled non planning issues to be robustly 
handled.

The Chairman on behalf of the Committee thanked the Enforcement Officer for his 
work.

RESOLVED:-  To note the report.

Town and Country Planning Acts

82 – Delegated Decisions

The Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built Environment submitted for 
information details of planning applications in this report which he had determined 
under delegated authority (Minute No. 254, Planning Committee, 3rd September, 
2002, confirmed by Council 24th September, 2002).  The decisions are reported for 
your information.  The plans recommended for approval under the Town and Country 
Planning Acts will be subject to the standard conditions referred to in Minute No. 208 
(April 1971) of the Plans Sub-Committee, Barrow-in-Furness, County Borough 
Council, in addition to any conditions indicated hereunder.  Applications with a (P) 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



beside the applicant’s name denotes those applications that were reported to the 
Planning Panel.

RESOLVED:- (i) To note the decisions made under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) as follows:-

2019/0607 Erection of a two storey side extension forming additional unity, 
extended dining room and one additional bedroom (Resubmission to 
a revised scheme) at 27 Water Garth, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0636 Barn conversion to be a residential dwelling at barn at Cliffways, 
Tippins Lane, Ireleth, Askam-in-Furness.

2019/0641 Single storey side extension forming extended living room and 
bedroom at 5 Silecroft Gardens, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0662 Listed Building Consent for internal alterations to form open plan 
office/sales area to front of property with reconfigured brew area, 
store room and wc at 54 Market Street, Dalton-in-Furness.

2019/0687 Change of use from a Taxi Office (Ground Floor) with residential 
accommodation above to single residential accommodation in 
conjunction with upper floors at 109 Ramsden Street, Barrow-in-in-
Furness.

2019/0696 Application for prior notification of agricultural or forestry development 
- proposed general purpose agricultural building at Oak Lea Farm, 
Oak Lea Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0617 First floor extension to form sluice and bedroom at Risedale 
Retirement Home, Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0653 Installation of metal acoustic perimeter fences with access gates to a 
height of 4.5m to enclose proposed transformers at Devonshire Dock 
Hall, North Road (Land South of) and South of Central Yard Facility, 
Bridge Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0657 Proposed attached side covered storage area between dwelling and 
boundary wall with wrap around roof to form front canopy at 23 
Abbotsmead Approach, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0644 Erection of two storey side extension with full width single storey rear 
extension at 50 Balmoral Drive, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0339 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 5 
(Surface Water Drainage), No. 7 (Highway Details), No. 11 
(Archaeological Work), No. 17 (Reasonable Avoidance Measures re: 
GCN), No. 18 (Construction Method Statement) and No. 22 (Field 
Investigation and Risk Assessment) of planning permission 
2018/0798 (Outline planning permission for approximately 142 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



dwellings with associated open space and landscaping at Proposed 
Housing Development at Dalton Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

The following applications were County Matters:-

2019/9200 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 4 
(Proposed Waste Transfer Station (County Matter)) at Partylite 
Manufacturing Ltd (former) Park Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/9005 Section 73 Application to amend Conditions 1, 2 and 4 of planning 
permission 6/15/9005. Condition No. 1 to amend the life of permission 
from 31st December, 2017 to 31st December, 2019 and allow 
restoration to be completed by 31st December, 2021; Condition No. 2 
to amend the approved restoration scheme; Condition No. 4 to amend 
restoration drawing 435-01-06 dated June 2015 to drawing 2166-01-
01 dated November 2017 (County Matter) Bennett Bank Landfill Site, 
Hawthwaite Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

(ii) To note the decisions made under the Building Act 1984/The Building 
Regulations 2010 as submitted by the Principal Building Control Surveyor.

Town and Country Planning Acts

The Planning Manager reported on the following planning applications:-

83 – 9 Bourne Gardens, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr L. Cleasby in respect of a double storey side extension forming: bedroom 4 
and utility room at ground floor level, bedroom 3 and bathroom at first floor level, rear 
single storey extension forming a sunroom. Front single storey extension forming a 
new entrance. Porch and wet room, internal alterations and off road parking to front 
at 9 Bourne Gardens, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0628.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband and,

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning 
& Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 28/08/19 and the hereby 
approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, except 
where varied by conditions attached to this consent:

1-LC-12,
2-LC-12 rev A,
3-LC-12,
4-LC-12,
5-LC-12,
6-LC-12 rev A,
7-LC-12,
8-LC-12 rev A,
9-LC-12,
10-LC-12,
11-LC-12,
12-LC-12 rev A.

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces, 
including walls, roofs, doors, and windows of the extensions hereby 
permitted shall be of the same type, colour and texture as those used in 
the existing building.

Reason

To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development, and to 
minimise its impact upon the surrounding area.

Before Occupation

4. Unless the Planning Authority gives written agreement that it is 
impractical to do so, all hard surfaced areas associated with vehicle 
parking shall be of permeable construction.

Reason

In order to ensure that the site is adequately drained in accordance with 
the sustainable principles found in the NPPF.

Operational Conditions

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) no 
additional opening of any kind shall be made in the upper northeast 
facing side elevation of the permitted two storey side extension, and no 
opening of any kind shall be made in the southwest facing side 
elevation of the rear extension without the prior consent of the Planning 
Authority.

Reason

In order to protect the residential amenities of neighbouring properties 
from overlooking or perceived overlooking.

84 – Lisdoone Hotel, Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness

From Sansec Developments NS Ltd, c/o agent in respect of the change of use from 
hotel function room to Use Class A1 to form new retail store alongside external 
alterations, associated parking and service yard at 307-309 (Lisdoonie Hotel), Abbey 
Road, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0567.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband, and

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning 
& Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 31.7.19 and the 
hereby approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, 
except where varied by a condition attached to this consent:

Proposed site plan Drawing 6647(P)101 Rev M (amended plan rec'd on 
22.11.2019)
Existing and proposed east elevation Drawing 6647(P) 204 Rev B
Existing and proposed east sections/elevations Drawing 6647(P) 203 
Rev C (amended plan rec'd on 22.11.2019)
Existing and proposed west elevation Drawing 6647(P) 202 Rev B
Existing and proposed south elevation Drawing 6647(P) 201 Rev C 
(amended plan rec'd on 22.11.2019)

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Existing and proposed north elevation Drawing 6647(P) 200 Rev B
Proposed roof plan Drawing 6647(P) 105 Rev A
Proposed ground floor plan Drawing 6647(P) 103 Rev E
Proposed block plan Drawing 6647(P) 011 Rev I (amended plan rec'd 
on 22.11.2019)
Visibility splay Drawing 6647(P) 107 Rev C

Drainage and Construction plans:
Section 184 Construction details Drawing 19N2015-103 Rev P2 rec'd 
on 21.11.2019
Private Surface Treatments Construction Details Drawing 19N2015-101 
Rev P1 rec'd on 19.11.2019
Private Drainage Details Drawing 19N2015-105 Rev P1 rec'd on 
19.11.2019
Section 184 Layout Drawing 19N2015-102 Rev P2 rec'd on 19.11.2019
Drainage Layout Drawing 19N2015-104 Rev P1 rec'd on 19.11.2019
Chiller Recess Detail Drawing 19N2015-201-Rev P1 rec'd on 
19.11.2019

Other documents:
Sequential Site Assessment by Lichfields received on 7.11.2019
Planning statement dated 26.7.2019
Transport Statement Ref 190722-786-TAv4
Transport Technical References
Transport Statement Appendices
Waste process statement
Noise Impact Assessment Report by Hann Tucker Associated 
Reference 26819/NIA1
Tree survey plan dated 1.11.2019 by BHA Trees Ltd and 
accompanying planting schedule by Greg Thompson dated 9.11.2019

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

Pre-commencement Conditions

3. No development shall be commenced on the site which is the subject of 
this permission until the following measures have been met to prevent 
damage being caused to those trees which are shown to be retained. 
Measures to protect those trees shown to be retained must include the 
following:

a) Fencing in accordance with a scheme submitted to and approved 
by the Planning Authority must be erected around each tree or 
group of trees.  This fencing must be at least 1.25 metres high 
and at a radius from the trunk defined by the crown spread but not 
exceeding 4.5 metres.

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



b) No excavations, site works, trenches, channels, pipes, services, 
temporary buildings used in connection with the development, 
areas for the deposit of soil or waste, or for storage of 
construction materials, equipment or fuel, shall be sited within the 
crown spread of any tree without the prior express consent of the 
Planning Authority.

c) No burning of any materials shall take place with within 6 metres 
of any tree or tree groups to be retained without the prior express 
consent.

Reason

In order to ensure that damage does not occur to the trees during 
building or engineering operations.

4. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, 
until a Demolition and Construction Method Statement has been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The 
approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the demolition and 
construction periods. The Statement shall provide for all of the 
following:

i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials;
iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development;
iv. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding, where 

appropriate;
v. wheel washing facilities where vehicles will enter the site;
vi. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 

construction; and
vii. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition 

and from construction works.

Reason

In the interests of minimising the impact upon local environmental 
amenity.

5. Prior to the commencement of vehicular use of the Abbey Road 
access/egress, visibility splays providing clear visibility of 60 metres 
measured 2.4 metres down the centre of the access road and the 
nearside channel line of the carriageway edge shall be provided at the 
junction of the access road with the county highway in accordance with 
Drawing reference 6647(P) 107 Rev C.
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking and re-enacting that Order) relating to permitted development, 
no structure, vehicle or object of any kind shall be erected, parked or 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



placed and no trees, bushes or other plants shall be planted or be 
permitted to grown within the visibility splay which obstruct the visibility 
splays.
The visibility splays shall be constructed before general development of 
the site commences so that construction traffic is safeguarded.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety.

6. Prior to the installation of the proposed shopfront on site, full details of 
the design and external appearance of the shop front, including the 
fascias, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and retained 
thereafter in accordance with the approved details.

Reason

The application does not contain sufficient details of the shop front to 
enable the Local Planning Authority to give proper consideration to 
those matters.

During Building Works

7. The existing vehicular access at the site onto Furness Park Road shall 
be permanently closed for vehicular use as indicated on Drawing 
reference 6647(P) 101 Rev M received on 22.11.2019 after the new 
access hereby approved has been brought into use.

Reason

In the interest of road and pedestrian safety and highway maintenance.

8. Any areas of walling required to be infilled shall use matching materials 
to those found on the adjacent area of walling including brick colour, 
texture and bond.

Reason

In the interests of the appearance of the development and the visual 
amenity of the area in which it is located.

9. Prior to the installation on site, details of any external plant and 
machinery, including size, dimensions, siting and the manufacturer’s 
specifications shall be submitted to and be agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. All plant and machinery shall be installed in 
accordance with the approved details and manufacturers specification, 
including any agreed noise abatement measures.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



Reason

In order to enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the 
implications of any plant and machinery on visual and residential 
amenity since no such details have been provided. 

10. Prior to the installation on site an arborical method statement shall be 
provided for the installation of any drainage which falls within the Root 
Protection Area of trees proposed to be retained on site. The Method 
Statement shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and the work shall proceed and be implemented fully in accordance 
with the Method Statement and under arborical supervision.

Reason

In order to safeguard the retained trees on the site and prevent damage 
to their root system.

Before Occupation

11. The shop unit shall not be brought into use until the vehicle access, 
parking and turning spaces have been marked out and provided in 
accordance with the drawing no 6647(P) 101 Rev M received on 
22.11.2019.The parking and turning spaces shall thereafter be kept 
available for vehicular use at all times.

Reason

To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities, 
in order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would 
adversely affect road safety and the flow of traffic.

12. The approved drainage measures set out in Condition 2 above to 
prevent surface water discharging onto or off the highway shall be 
implemented in full prior to the beneficial use of the convenience store 
and shall be maintained operational thereafter.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety and environmental management.

13. The 2.4 metre x 2.4 metre pedestrian visibility sight splay as measured 
from the highway boundary (or footpath boundary),as indicated on 
Drawing 6647(P)107 Rev C shall be provided on both sides of the 
vehicular access onto Abbey Road before the vehicular access is 
brought into use. There shall be no obstruction above a height of 
600mm as measured from the finished surface of the access within the 
area of the visibility sight splays thereafter.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To provide adequate inter-visibility between the pedestrians and users 
of the access and the existing public highway for the safety and 
convenience of users of the highway and of the access.

14. The convenience store, the subject of the application, shall not be 
brought into use until a Service and Deliveries Management Plan, that 
shall address matters including:
- the maximum length of delivery vehicles;
- how delivery vehicles and servicing will be managed on site;
- the proposed delivery route;
- the proposed co-ordination and management of deliveries with the    
  adjacent hotel use;
- the proposed delivery timings and method, timed to avoid peak traffic       
  hours;
- mechanisms to reduce noise from any deliveries and cages/trolleys,  

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The Best Practice Guidance measures included in Section  
8.5 of the Noise Impact Assessment Report Reference 26819/NIA1 
dated 25 July 2019 prepared by Hann Tucker Associates should be  
incorporated within the Service Management Plan.  Servicing, 
including deliveries, shall only be made in accordance with the 
approved Service and Deliveries Management Plan.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of adjacent 
residents.

15. Prior to the commencement of use of the convenience store hereby 
approved an electric vehicle charging point (EVCP) shall be provided 
within the site and thereafter retained permanently for use.

Reason

In the interests of encouraging sustainable travel choices and to 
support Policy I4 of the adopted Local Plan.

16. The beneficial use of the convenience store shall not take place until 
full details of all off site highway works, including a programme of 
implementation, have been subject to the prior written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority and completed and signed off as completed 
by, or on behalf of, the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the 
agreed time-table for implementation.  The submitted details shall be 
based on the preliminary designs set out in the Transport Statement
Ref190722-786-TAv4.

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



Reason

In order to ensure that the highway network, including facilities for 
pedestrians and cyclists, has sufficient capacity to safely accommodate 
the proposed use and the proposed access/egress onto Abbey Road.

Operational Conditions

17. All tree planting and management works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the tree survey plan prepared by BHA Trees dated 
1.11.2019 and the accompanying schedule overview, received by the 
Local Planning Authority on 11.11.19 and there shall be no variation 
without the prior consent of the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and 
seeding seasons following beneficial use of the convenience store 
hereby approved, or in accordance with the phasing of the scheme as 
agreed in writing with the Planning Authority.  Any trees or plants which 
within a period of five years from the completion of the development 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be 
replaced by the landowner in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless the Planning Authority gives prior 
written consent to any variation.

Reason

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area.

18. Noise from the development must not exceed Noise Rating Curve NR 
30 in daytime hours (0700 - 2300) and NR 25 in night time hours (2300 
- 0700) in any noise sensitive property.

Reason

In order to protect residential amenity.

19. Prior to the installation on site details of the design of any new walls 
and fences shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. All walls and fences shall then be installed in 
accordance with the approved details and shall thereafter be so 
maintained.

Reason

No such details have been submitted and in the interests of the 
character and appearance of the development.

20. The change of use hereby approved shall operate for the current 
applicants only as a convenience store within the A1 Use Class on the 
basis of the business model and sequential test submitted with this 
planning application.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Reason

The premises is only considered to be acceptable for the proposed use 
taking into account the unique business requirements of the applicants 
and the package of information that they have provided to pass the 
sequential test. An unrestricted "town centre use" such as A1 or A2 
would only be appropriate in this location if adequate justification by 
way of a sequential test is provided. This is in line with the NPPF's 
"town centre first" approach and the need to protect the viability and 
vitality of Barrow Town Centre. In particular, Paragraph 86 of the NPPF 
states that: “Main town centre uses should be located in town centres, 
then in edge of centre locations; and only if suitable sites are not 
available (or expected to become available within a reasonable period) 
should out of centre sites be considered".

85 – 128 Buccleuch Street, Barrow-in-Furness

From H. Baldwin c/o Shepherd Architecture and Surveying in respect of the 
proposed conversion from retail use (A1) into 9 serviced apartments (C1) including 
removal of shopfront and provision of additional windows to north west, north east 
and south east elevation at 128 Buccleuch Street, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on 
plan number 2019/0124.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband, and

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that:-

(A) Subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106 Obligation (which may be 
a Unilateral Undertaking) to secure the following:

- that no apartment shall be used for any use other than as a C1 use;
- that no apartment shall be used or occupied as a residential dwelling or 

dwelling house (C3 use);
- that no apartment shall be let or be licenced for occupation for a continuous 

period of more than 3 months to the same occupier or occupiers;
- not to require customers of any apartment to agree to any minimum period 

of occupation (of whatever duration);
- to provide to the Council within 14 days of a written request, documented 

evidence regarding the use or occupation of the apartments or any 
individual apartment, then

(B) Planning permission be granted subject to the Standard Duration Limit and 
the conditions set out below:-

Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 18th February 2019 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



and the hereby approved documents defined by this permission as 
listed below, except where varied by a condition attached to this 
consent:

Plans dated 11.3.19: DRC89A/PA/02B, DRC89A/PA/03, 
DRC89A/PA/04A, DRC89A/PA/05

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

During Building Works

3. New ground floor windows and doors abutting the highway shall be of a 
type which cannot open outwards into the highway, except in an 
emergency.

Reason

In order to protect users of the adjacent foot-ways and highway.

Before Occupation

4. On site secure facilities for the storage of recycling receptacles and 
wheeled refuse storage bin(s) of suitable capacities to serve the 
development must be provided before any beneficial use of the 
premises begins and thereafter permanently maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Authority.

Reason

In the interests of environmental amenity by ensuring that there is a 
suitable provision of refuse storage on the site.

The meeting closed at 2.58 pm.

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions made between 
 
 

 
and 

 
 
 
 
 

For Information 
 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
Planning (Listed buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 (as amended) 
Town and County Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. 
 
The Planning applications in this report have been determined by the Development 
Services Manager (Planning) under delegated authority (Minute No. 107, Executive 
Committee, 7th February 2018, confirmed by Council 1st March 2018 (Minute No. 63). 
The decisions are reported for your information. 
 

 

 

 

Assistant Director of Regeneration and Built Environment 

17/12/2019

13/11/2019

03/12/2019

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B22/2019/0746

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
03/12/2019

Location:
DSG Vauxhall Ironworks Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 2PG

Proposal:
Advertisement consent to display 6 no. fascia
signs, 1 no. entrance sign and 1 no. pole mounted
projecting sign.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B18/2019/0749

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
03/12/2019

Location:
Unit 4, Hindpool Retail Park, Hindpool Road,
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 2PD

Proposal:
External alterations to retail unit including  removal
of entrance lobby and provision of  new double
height glazing to front and side elevations and
associated site works including removal of trolley
bay and provision of additional car parking spaces.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B21/2019/0661

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/11/2019

Location:
21 Lesh Lane, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA13
9EA

Proposal:
Front mono pitched roof extension forming porch
and utility room and flat roofed rear extension
forming sun room

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2019/0666

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
19/11/2019

Location:
21 Almond Walk, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 0RJ

Proposal:
Hipped roof porch to front elevation

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0676

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
18/11/2019

Location:
61 Holbeck Park Avenue, Barrow-in-
Furness,Cumbria, LA13 0RG

Proposal:
Application for removal or variation of condition no,
2 of planning permission 1983/0642 to allow the
conversion of garage to a bedroom.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B23/2019/0522

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
19/11/2019

Location:
18 Market Street, Dalton-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA15 8AA

Proposal:
Listed Building Consent to replace front door with
timber paneled door with glass upper panel.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2019/0715

Decision:
REFUSED

Decision Date:
02/12/2019

Location:
2 Redoak Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0LE

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 8 (driveway details) Plot 1 only of
planning permission 2014/0446 (Change of use of
existing detached property to dwelling including
construction of front and side extension and
erection of one further detached dwelling (re-
submission B13/2014/0248 in a revised form)

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2019/0551

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
22/11/2019

Location:
62 North Scale Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
3RP

Proposal:
Proposed vehicle crossing.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0656

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
27/11/2019

Location:
24 Piel Street Roa Island Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0QJ

Proposal:
Two storey side extension to existing 2 bedroom
dwelling.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2019/0669

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
19/11/2019

Location:
1 Poplar Bank, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA13
0RB

Proposal:
Erection of single storey rear extension to form
garden room (replacement building).

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2019/0768

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
19/11/2019

Location:
Church Farm Church Hill Lindal-in-Furness
Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for works to tree(s) within a
Conservation Area to allow for the  felling of a
sycamore tree shown as T1 on the plan provided

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Lindal and
Marton Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/12/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0757

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
04/11/2019

Location:
227 Rating Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9LQ

Proposal:
Rear kitchen / living area, utility room and WC
extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
13/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0792

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
12/11/2019

Location:
64 School Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 1EW

Proposal:
Proposed 3 storey extension and internal
alterations to existing building.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
27/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0011

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
10/10/2019

Location:
Low Peasholmes Farm House Low
Peasholmes Farm Peasholmes Lane Barrow-
in-Furness Cumbria LA13 0QB

Proposal:
Single storey garden room extension

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
03/12/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0794

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
12/11/2019

Location:
35 Hill Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
4EZ

Proposal:
Loft conversion with rear dormer to provide 2
bedrooms and shower room.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
15/11/2019

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/12/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0832

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
27/11/2019

Location:
25 Cloisters Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0BA

Proposal:
Construction of store room to side of house.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
27/11/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0834

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
28/11/2019

Location:
42 Furness Park Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 5PS

Proposal:
Widening of existing opening, removal of wall
and thermal upgrade to walls.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
28/11/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0835

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
28/11/2019

Location:
10 Avon Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3EL

Proposal:
Demolition of internal wall and installation of
RSJ.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
28/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0646

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
30/10/2019

Location:
4 Estuary Park Askam-in-Furness Cumbria
LA16 7JA

Proposal:
Single storey side extension forming a store
and sunroom.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
13/11/2019

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/12/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0739

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
21/10/2019

Location:
34 Middleton Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9HN

Proposal:
Single storey side dining room extension and
removal of first floor load bearing wall.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
02/12/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0842

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
02/12/2019

Location:
40 Redoak Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0JU

Proposal:
Internal alterations and new pitched roof to the
rear.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
02/12/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0850

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
02/12/2019

Location:
2 Darley Dale Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 5ND

Proposal:
Replacement windows and doors.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
02/12/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0854

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
02/12/2019

Location:
3 Rosse Field Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9RF

Proposal:
Removal of cavity wall between kitchen and
utility room.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
02/12/2019

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/12/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0855

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
03/12/2019

Location:
Paddock View Woodbine Lane Newton-in-
Furness Cumbria LA13 0NF

Proposal:
Granny annexe extension.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
03/12/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0738

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
21/10/2019

Location:
78 Southport Drive Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3LS

Proposal:
Removal of internal load bearing wall.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
19/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0810

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
25/11/2019

Location:
80 Redoak Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0RN

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
02/12/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0829

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
26/11/2019

Location:
10 Maylands Grove Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0AN

Proposal:
Removal of chimney breast.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
26/11/2019

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/12/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0798

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
13/11/2019

Location:
51 Thorncliffe Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 5QA

Proposal:
Conversion of coach house to dwelling.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
13/11/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0816

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
21/11/2019

Location:
15 Lichfield Close Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5LX

Proposal:
Garage conversion into a kitchen.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
21/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0721

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
10/10/2019

Location:
19 Meadowlands Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0AR

Proposal:
Wrap around single storey rear and side
extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Refused

Decision
Date:
03/12/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0796

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
13/11/2019

Location:
55 Longlands Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0AQ

Proposal:
Double storey rear extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
26/11/2019

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 17/12/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0804

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
18/11/2019

Location:
11 Duke Street Askam-in-Furness Cumbria
LA16 7AA

Proposal:
Installation of wet room with associated
drainage.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
18/11/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0690

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
01/10/2019

Location:
Park Farm Park Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8JZ

Proposal:
Conversion of workshop.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
28/11/2019

Page 28

Agenda Item 7



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

FOR DECISION 
 

 
 

  17th December 2019 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen,  
 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 
 
 
 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Planning Manager 
 

Page 1 of 32

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



B18/2019/0683 
Planning Committee 
17

th
 December 2019   

  

  

Application Number : B18/2019/0683 Date Valid :01/10/2019 

Address : Plot 11, Mill Lane, Barrow-in-
Furness, Cumbria 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Siting of 2 poly tunnels (partly retrospective) 

Ward : Walney North Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Miss Eve Mulholland, 
 Art Gene  

Agent : Miss Eve Mulholland, 
 Art Gene  

Statutory Date : 26/11/2019 
Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 – Paragraph 008 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 – Paragraph 091 
3. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 – Paragraph 127 
4. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 – Paragraph 175 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 
sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 
Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy GI2 - Green Wedges 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and 

geodiversity 

 

 

Page 2 of 32

Page 30

Agenda Item 8



Summary of Main Issues 

The siting of the polytunnels gives rise to the potential of landscape change but also 
increases the community benefit and biodiversity potential of the site. 

 

Non Material Considerations 

None 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

  

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Mill Lane Fire Station, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 09/10/2019  

“no comment 

already discussed with tenant” 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 32

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



  
 Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 09/10/2019  

"The BAE site is covered by the provision of the Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and 
Public Information) 2019 Regulations. There are no objections to the proposed development 
based on the information provided but it should be noted that the proposed development is 
situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of BAE. Cumbria County Council, in 
liaison with the site operator and the Office for Nuclear Regulation, have certain special 
arrangements are made for residents/business premises in this area and particular attention 
is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the appropriate action to take in the event of an 
incident at the site. 

Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, 
advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further discussion." 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

  

Officers Report 

1.  Site and Locality 

1.1 The application site is located on the southern side of Mill Lane, adjacent to the site 
formerly housing the Periscope public house.  Vickerstown Primary School is located further 
to the east, beyond the site of the former Avon Nursery Garden Centre.  The site is used as 
a community growing space and contains a number of smaller buildings including a 
container, a smaller poly-tunnel and a shed.  A pond is also present in the southern section 
of the site.   

1.2 Whilst outside of any designated sites (SSSI's etc) the site falls within a locally 
designated Green Wedge, which is flanked by two allocated housing sites. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Siting of 2 poly tunnels (partly retrospective) 

3. Relevant History 
3.1 1975/1111 Disused Military Camp, Mill Lane, Barrow-in-Furness Reclamation of derelict 
land Approved 03/02/1976 
 
3.2 54/1993/0155 Land adjacent to Park Vale Sports Facility, Mill Lane, Barrow-in-Furness 
Golf driving range and retail golf shop and club facility Appcond 22/04/1993 
 
3.3 57/1992/0260 Park Vale Sports Centre Mill Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 3XY 
Golf driving range (Town and County Planning General Regulations, 1976 - Regulation 5) 
Approved 21/05/1992 
 
3.4 57/2004/0761 Field adjoining the Periscope Hotel Mill Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
LA14 3XY Erection of stables Appcond 23/08/2004 
 

Page 4 of 32

Page 32

Agenda Item 8



3.5 B18/2017/0196 Isle of Walney Community Growing Space, Mill Lane Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria Siting a storage container on a field used as a community growing space. 
APPCOND 23/05/2017 
 
3.6 B20/2010/1618 The Island Tavern Mill Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 3XY 
Change of use from public house to childrens day nursery. Appcond 11-JAN-2011 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The application is being reported to committee in accordance with the delegation 
agreement as the site is council owned. Currently it is leased to a local community group Art 
Gene who, since 2015, have run a community growing project called "Allotment Soup". This 
involves a wide range of activities relating to how people interact with the landscape, on the 
site this includes growing organic food, cultivating habitats, and studying local wildlife. The 
site also acts as a focus for volunteer group activities across the Borough. 

4.2 The main issues for consideration are the benefits of the proposal, balanced against 
any potential adverse impact of the poly-tunnels on the open space defined as Green 
Wedge in Local Plan Policy GI2. 

Purpose 

4.3 The purpose of the poly-tunnels, as detailed in the submitted planning statement, is to 
propagate local wild plants for re-introduction onto Walney and elsewhere in the Borough.  
This is carried out by volunteers from the local community including occasional visits from 
local schools, a key basis of the funding allowing the scheme.  This in itself can be 
considered as a positive for biodiversity, both in terms of reintroducing native plants to the 
area, but also increasing education and awareness of biodiversity issues facing society.  
Biodiversity can also make other productive contributions. For example, an estimated 
80,000 tonnes of food is produced on UK allotments annually, worth an estimated £114 
million.  The wider site is used as a community growing space which contributes to this 
figure; the diversification of the community use as proposed will help promote and sustain 
interest in this and, likely, other such facilities. 

4.4 The construction/siting of the tunnels is not particularly invasive as they do not require 
foundations or services and can be readily taken down.  A base of compacted hardcore is to 
be provided within, though a condition requiring reinstatement of the ground, amounting to a 
relatively small area in the wider context of the wedge, can be attached to any consent .  
The tunnels are remote from the hawthorn hedge which bounds Mill Lane and any trees to 
the east of the site. 

 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 32

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



Potential impact 

4.5 The potential impact primarily relates to the increased visibility as the tunnels will be seen 
from the surrounding area.  The translucent polythene clad structures are indicated to have 
an overall height of 3.7m.  As such they are visible in wider distant views, particularly when 
travelling towards the site in an easterly direction on Mill Lane, and from Trent Vale.  Views 
are screened immediately outside of the site by the hawthorn hedge.  The overall height and 
scale isn't excessive however, and whilst the tops of the structures can be seen the inter-
visibility of the tunnels isn't considered to be significant as they occupy only a small corner of 
the site.   

4.6 Local Plan Policy GI2 supports development within Green Wedges subject to the stated 
criteria.  In this instance, due to the relatively small scale of the area covered by the 
tunnels it is considered that the aim of providing visual relief, contrast and separation 
between neighbouring development areas is retained.  Whilst the development is visible, it is 
not particularly 'urbanising' and the wider open character of the Green Wedge is largely 
unaffected.  This low level of harm from the increased visibility can however be balanced 
against the community benefits detailed above, something also promoted in the policy 
where it encourages an enhancement of biodiversity and value as a setting for recreation.  

4.7 The draft Green Infrastructure Strategy SPD acknowledges the wider designation 
contains other such sporadic development including other agricultural buildings and leisure 
related "horsiculture" uses and buildings.  The documents vision for Green Infrastructure 
states, 

"The Vision is of a Borough increasingly characterised by an overarching network of multi-
functional, well-connected open and planted green spaces providing a high quality setting 
for regeneration, development and recreation that inspires communities to be healthier 
whilst maintaining and enhancing a valued bio-diversity." 

4.8 It is worth noting that no objections have been received despite one of the two tunnels 
having been in place for the entirety of the application.  No dwellings currently lie in close 
proximity, though it is acknowledged that they are in close proximity to an allocated site.  
The use within is not likely to cause noise disturbance, with educational visits likely to be 
during working hours.  Artificial lighting could potentially be used to help grow plants within; 
a condition can require details be submitted before being installed to ensure this doesn't 
result in light pollution. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The development is compatible with the vision of the Green Wedge which should help 
encourage communities to engage in healthy and sustainable activities.  The small scale of 
the tunnels prevents any significant resultant harm, and thereby change, to the open 
character of the wider designation and retains an agricultural appearance as opposed to any 
urbanising of the site.  It is considered the small level of visual harm is outweighed by the 
biodiversity and community benefits provided by the proposal. 

 

Page 6 of 32

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration Limit 
and the following conditions : - 

  
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning 
with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated 26/09/2019 and the hereby approved documents defined by this 
permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent. 
 
Polytunnels: Plans CGS_2 02 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
3. No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in 
accordance with details that have previously been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and direction of light 
sources and intensity of illumination. Any such lighting shall at all times be directed and 
shielded so as to minimise light spillage outside of the application site, and shall not 
thereafter be altered, other than for routine maintenance which does not change its details, 
without the prior consent in writing of the Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 
 
To minimise light pollution in accordance with Saved policy D63 of the Barrow Local Plan 
Review 1996-2006, and in order to protect the amenities of the area. 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
4. Within 90 days of the poly tunnels no longer providing a function, the structures and all 
ancillary fittings and fixtures shall be removed from site and the land reinstated in 
accordance with a scheme to be subject to prior written agreement with the Planning 
Authority. 
 

Page 7 of 32

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area due to the location within a designated 
Green Wedge. 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

   

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

   

  

  

  

Page 8 of 32

Page 36

Agenda Item 8



Page 9 of 32

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



Page 10 of 32

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 8



B18/2019/0700 
Planning Committee  
17th December 2019  

  

  
Application Number : B18/2019/0700 Date Valid :04/10/2019 

Address : Paddock 5, Haggs Land, 
Millwood Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : The construction of three general purpose buildings for forestry use and 
secure storage of tools, equipment and forestry products (retrospective) (amended 
description). 

Ward : Hawcoat Ward Parish : Dalton Town with Newton Parish 
Council 

Applicant : Mr & Mrs Truckell   Agent : John Metcalfe Rural Futures  

Statutory Date : 29/11/2019 Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   
  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018- Paragraph NPPF- 150 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018- Paragraph NPPF- 170 
3. National Planning Policy Framework 2018- Paragraph NPPF -175 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 
sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 
Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy GI7 - Open Countryside 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features 

 

 

Page 11 of 32

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



Summary of Main Issues 

The use of the land for forestry purposes is exempt from most planning controls.  The 
primary consideration relates to the use and appearance of the proposed buildings, and any 
potential impact upon the environment. 

Non Material Considerations 

Access rights; civil matter 

Trespass; civil matter 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Brewery Street 2, 
Cobden Street 58, 
Dalton Road Albion Hotel, 
Duke Street 29, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

11 0 7 4 

Summary of objections 

Potential residential use of the land/buildings, presence of unauthorised structures including 
caravans and toilet shed, disturbance to wildlife from power tools, visual appearance, sales 
of timber/products to public, traffic generation and inadequate access. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Licensing) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (PROW) 
Dalton With Newton Town Council 
Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 
Forrestery Commission 
   

 

 

Page 12 of 32

Page 40

Agenda Item 8



List of Organisation Responses 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 10/10/2019  

"There are no objections to the proposed development but it should be noted that the 
proposed development is situated within the potential inundation area for Harlock and 
Poaka Beck Reservoirs. These Reservoirs falls under the Water Framework Directive and 
has a prepared off site emergency planning. 

Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, 
advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further discussion." 

Cumbria County Council (PROW) 10/10/2019  

"The access to the development uses public footpath 602014. Could the safety of its users 
be taken into consideration and any damage to the route caused by the development or the 
future increased vehicle usage be ensured." 

Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 17/10/2019  

"The application is for less vulnerable development in Flood Zone 3. 

Environment Agency position 

We have no objection to the development as submitted. 

We have reviewed the Flood Risk Assessment prepared by Rural Futures (undated) 
provided in support of this application. We are satisfied that it addresses the flood risk 
associated with this site, and is appropriate to the nature and scale of the development. The 
applicant as current occupiers of the site, will be aware of the potential flood risk and 
frequency at this location and should be satisfied that the impact of any flooding will not 
adversely affect their proposals." 

Forestry Commission 22/10/2019  

"The Forestry Commission is a non-statutory consultee on developments in or within 500m 
of ancient woodland. 

Ancient woodland is an irreplaceable habitat.  National Planning Policy Framework 
paragraph 118 states: 

‘planning permission should be refused for development resulting in the loss or 
deterioration of irreplaceable habitats, including ancient woodland and the loss of aged 
or veteran trees found outside ancient woodland, unless the need for, and benefits of, 
the development in that location clearly outweigh the loss’ 

 

 

Page 13 of 32

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



The Forestry Commission has prepared joint standing advice with Natural England on 
ancient woodland and veteran trees to which we refer you in the first instance. This: 

• is provided in place of individual responses to planning consultations.  We no longer 
respond to weekly planning lists; 

• should be taken into account by planning authorities where relevant when 
determining planning applications; 

• provides links to Natural England’s Ancient Woodland Inventory, assessment guides 
and other tools to assist you in assessing potential impacts.  

In the majority of cases this will provide the advice you need to help you make your 
decision about a development proposal.  If you need further bespoke advice from us please 
contact your local Forestry Commission Area office." 

Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 The application site comprises a small parcel of land, close to the field access, within the 
wider triangular shaped paddock which extends to the north forming part of an attractive 
area of countryside located within Goldmire Valley.  The site falls within Flood risk zones 2 
& 3, with around half of the wider land holding containing a central pond.  Access is from 
Millwood via a long unmade track which gives access to the numerous paddocks in the 
valley, running close to and carrying sections of a Public Right of Way.  Goldmire Beck 
forms the applications site's western boundary whilst the railway line (the loop which 
bypasses Barrow) forms its eastern boundary within an area of ancient woodland, which 
falls outside of the applicants site. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 The construction of three general purpose buildings for forestry use and secure storage 
of tools, equipment and forestry products (retrospective) (amended description). 

3. Relevant History 
 
3.1 B18/2009/2143 Field to rear of Millwood Manor Millwood Lane Dalton-in-Furness 
Cumbria Provision of hardcore to access track (retrospective) Appcond 08-FEB-2010 
 
3.2 BIN/2019/0645 Goldmire Beck, off Millwood Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria The 
construction of a general purpose building for forestry use. Storage of tools and equipment 
and forestry products (retrospective) INVALID 02/10/2019 

 
3.3 BSS/2013/0686 Land between Park Road Millwood Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 - 
Screening Opinion of proposed basin drainage improvements to be carried out. BSSNEA 
19-MAR-2014 

Page 14 of 32

Page 42

Agenda Item 8



4. Officer Assessment 

Local Plan Policy summary 

4.1 The site was formerly designated as a Local Landscape in the previous Local Plan (D3) 
and a wildlife corridor (D13).  Whilst not carried forward into the new Local Plan as a 
formally defined area within the Green Infrastructure Strategy, it does remain an area of 
open countryside.  Policy GI7 states "Development within the open countryside which 
accords with the Development Plan will be supported providing that it accords with the 
principles of the Green Infrastructure Strategy and recognises and respects the intrinsic 
character and beauty of the countryside."  No specific policies relate directly to forestry, 
though the design and sustainable development principles apply to all development (DS1, 
DS2 & DS5).  There are also biodiversity considerations relating to the development.  

Background 

4.2 It had previously been proposed to level the land to prevent the flooding from the beck 
and the subsequent ponding which left much of the land unusable.  This wasn't feasible 
however as it couldn't be demonstrated that these works would not displace flooding 
elsewhere.  As such, and as detailed in the submitted statements, the applicant has instead 
decided to work with the waterlogged ground to grow willow trees, a species which thrives 
in such conditions.  Extensive planting of willow has taken place, along with many other 
native trees including alder, aspen, beech and oak. 

4.3 The use for forestry does not require planning permission (in the same way as 
agricultural use) and extensive permitted development rights usually exist for buildings to 
support forestry uses.  Such operations already occur on the land.  However, as the 
application is retrospective, such permitted development (via Prior Approval) is 
not available for this proposal for the support buildings.  The agent acting for the applicant 
provided further details as to the nature of the operation and the need for them, 

"The harvested timber will be used in a variety of ways depending on the species and age 
of the cut material. Some material will require drying and will be stored within the open 
timber store. Some products (hurdles and willow products)  will be assembled on site and 
 transported off site when they leave the premises at the end of a working day. There will be 
no extra vehicle movements associated with the operations above what already takes 
place. Some products for hazel and willow weaving will again be transported off site and 
used with groups who deliver classes in this type of work. That is again off site so the 
harvested material is simply taken away when they leave the premises at the end of the 
day."  

 

 

 

 

Page 15 of 32

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



 

Benefits and potential issues 

4.4 The proposal has obvious biodiversity benefits resulting from the planting of trees and 
hedges, encouraging wildlife to use the site.  The use of harvested timber to sell locally and 
supply local classes adds to the sustainability of the operation by promoting the use of local 
products and services.  The felling of trees for this purpose should not deplete the tree 
stocks significantly as the operation is to be managed with new planting.  The coppicing 
method results in the retention of the trees which then regenerate for subsequent 
coppicing.  Leaving the natural pond in-situ and planting compatible trees allows for the 
natural cycles of the land to remain, preventing any potential for displacing flooding 
elsewhere.  This approach is beneficial to adjacent owners/tenants and for biodiversity as a 
natural habitat remains and is created.  This accords with policies GI7 and N4 as a 
sustainable use in the countryside.  It is considered to meet the vision of the draft Green 
Infrastructure SPD, which states more specifically at section 1.50; 

"The Woodland Trust has identified the need for the Borough to increase the area covered 
by woodland by 70 hectares. This is a considerable area when imagined on a single site. 
Whilst the opportunity to deliver large scale woodland is likely to be difficult economically as 
well as in terms of its impact on existing landscape character, the coordinated provision of 
meaningful areas of tree planting connected to the existing landscape framework will over 
time make an important contribution towards this figure." 

4.5 Noise 

A number of comments have been received following two separate consultations, the latter 
to allow for an amended plan to include a 3rd building already built on site (there is a 4th 
wooden shed/toilet, and 2 caravans - the applicant has stated that these will be removed).  
One of the primary complaints stated within the correspondence received relates to noise.  
The sustainable development criteria of Local Plan Policy DS2 require the "environmental 
effects of noise, smell, dust, light, vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance 
arising from the proposed development including from associated traffic are within 
acceptable levels."  

4.6 The use of power tools (chainsaws, machine saws etc) has the potential to create 
nuisance within the typically quiet environment.  Whilst it has to be remembered that 
forestry activity on any land is not a use that requires any prior permission, there is scope 
for the increased use of such tools given the ability to use and store them within the 
buildings.  To this end the applicant has agreed to a condition on any approval to limit the 
use of powered tools within the application site to the hours of 8am - 6pm on weekdays 
only.  This should provide adequate control and prevent the noisier activity occurring at 
evenings and weekends, the times when the surrounding area is most likely to be used for 
recreation.  

 

 

Page 16 of 32

Page 44

Agenda Item 8



4.7 Appearance 

Another concern is the visibility of the structures.  The 3 that are subject of the application 
are located in a small cluster, close to the southern boundary of the site and adjacent to a 
field used for keeping horses.  Screening exists along this boundary in the form of a willow 
hedge, which minimises any views of the buildings.  They are partly visible when the leaves 
have fallen off in autumn, and less visible in summer months.  Distant views are possible 
from Mill Brow and the PROW which runs nearby.  However, whilst visible, the structures 
aren't excessive in scale, with an indicated max height of 3.4m.  When viewed from the 
south looking north (form Mill Brow) they are seen in the same setting as the larger 
stables to the west, which are more prominent in views.  Taking this into account, it is not 
considered the small cluster of screened buildings unduly harm the open countryside 
landscape.  

4.8 Sales of timber/products 

Also detailed in the agents statement, quoted above, was the proposed method of selling 
any timber of crafted products.  No sales will take place from the sit, thus preventing any 
intensification of the unmade access.  Instead, material will be transported from the site at 
the end of the day during the usual journey made by the applicant.  A condition can be 
attached preventing sales from occurring as increased vehicle use would detract from the 
countryside location and create undue conflict on the PROW.   

4.9 Residential use 

Claims have been made that the applicants are using the site for leisure purposes, living on 
site, and/or will live on site in the existing structures, with the presence of a toilet and 
caravans cited in support of this.  A similar theme was discussed in 2018/0732, an 
application refused at committee for the retention of a welfare chalet.  The report stated, 

"Are such allegations and information pertaining to the of residential use considered to be 
material in the determination of the development at hand?  There are arguments either way, 
but to refuse planning permission for a (unauthorised) use different to that applied for is 
highly questionable and tantamount to the Planning Authority changing the description on 
the form.  Any alleged residential use of the chalet may cease at any time, or be rectified at 
the grant of permission for the site welfare purpose.  If residential use is substantiated and 
continued, an Enforcement notice would likely be the best remedy, outside of any planning 
application to retain such a use." 

4.10 No evidence of this has been provided, and none has been witnessed when visiting the 
site, both by the case officer and the Enforcement Officer investigating the original 
complaint.  That notwithstanding, suitable conditions can specify the permitted use for the 
avoidance of doubt and should any unauthorised use occur, appropriate action can be 
taken.  The agent has confirmed that the toilet structure and the two caravans will be 
removed from site.  One caravan is currently storing equipment which will be moved into 
the sheds if permission is granted.  Should this not occur it considered that it is expedient to 
remove the items as there appearance detracts from the rural setting and should be surplus 
to requirements if permission is granted for more appropriate structures. 

Page 17 of 32

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



4.11 Miscellaneous 

Comment about the planting of trees/species that are poisonous to horses has been made.  
Willow are not considered to be toxic, but in any case the forestry use of the site (including 
planting) is beyond planning control, only the buildings applied for are subject to the 
application.   

4.12 Whilst within Flood Risk Zones 2 & 3, the forestry use of the buildings is considered to 
be 'less vulnerable development' within national flood guidance.  The Environment Agency 
offer no objection. 

4.13 The Forestry Commission are concerned with development affecting ancient woodland 
and veteran trees.  Whilst bordering a section of ancient woodland, it falls outside of the 
applicants control and is not affected by the proposed structures. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 Whilst the assessment has raised a number of themes, the scope of the application is 
limited to the provision of the buildings rather than the wider forestry use.  Whilst the 
provision of storage workshops gives rise to an intensification of the forestry operations, this 
also permits an increase in biodiversity potential, through additional planting and habitat 
creation, in addition to the economic benefit to the applicant.  That said, conditions are 
necessary to ensure the operation remains appropriate to the site, which is isolated in the 
open countryside and has a unmade access which is not considered appropriate for sales 
to visiting members of the public.  However, the control afforded should allow a 
proportionate and sustainable use of the site, enhancing the forestry operations already 
taking place.  It is therefore considered to conform with the NPPF, the Local Plan and the 
draft Green Infrastructure SPD. 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that; 
  
a) Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions : - 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
1. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated 06/11/19 and the hereby approved documents defined by this 
permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent. 
 
Site Plan (Rev1), MT/004, MT/005, 'Storage Shed' elevations/plan. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
 
 

Page 18 of 32

Page 46

Agenda Item 8



Operational Conditions 
 
2. The buildings shall be used for forestry purposes (workshop, storage of timber and tools) 
and for no other purpose (including any other purpose defined in the Town and Country 
Planning (Use Classes) Order, 1987 (as amended), and the Town & Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development Order) (England) 2015 (as amended) or in any provision 
equivalent to that Class in any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting those Orders 
with or without modification). 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that inappropriate uses do not take place on the site due to the open countryside 
location and limited access to the site. 
 
3. The use of power tools or machinery shall not be used within the defined application site 
or the buildings therein except during the hours of 0800- 18:00 hours on weekdays only. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to minimise the potential for noise pollution. 
 
4. No storage shall take place outside the confines of the buildings unless in accordance 
with a detailed scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority 
prior to the commencement of any outdoor storage activity. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
 
5. No sales of timber or timber products must take place on or from the site, with any 
material to be sold transported from the site by the site operator only. 
 
Reason 
 
The remote location is considered unsuitable for visiting members of the public and 
increased vehicular traffic due to the countryside setting, poor standard of access and 
potential conflict with a public right of way, 

AND 

b) that should agreement on voluntary action not be reached within 2 months of the date of 
consent, then Enforcement proceedings be commenced to secure the removal of the 
buildings and caravans not authorised by this consent. 
 
Informative 

• Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out 

Page 19 of 32

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



   

• This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

 

   

  

  

  

Page 20 of 32

Page 48

Agenda Item 8



2019/0700

Page 21 of 32

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



2019/0700

Page 22 of 32

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 8



2019/0700

Page 23 of 32

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 8



2019/0700

Page 24 of 32

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 8



2019/0700

Page 25 of 32

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 8



B18/2019/0481 
Planning Committee 
17

th
 December 2019   

  

  

Application Number : B18/2019/0481 Date Valid :19/06/2019 

Address : 74 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-
Furness, Cumbria, LA14 5UB 

Case Officer : Maureen Smith 

Proposal : Application for planning permission for demolition of former registry office 
building located within a conservation area (Retrospective) 

Ward : Hindpool Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr J Cooksey   
Agent : Mr N Shepherd, Shepherd 
Architecture and Surveying  

Statutory Date : 14/08/2019 
Recommendation : Permission be 
granted with conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 
sustainable development 

2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 
Criteria 

3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HE4 - Conservation Areas 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HE5 - Demolition in a Conservation 

area 

Summary of Main Issues 

The main consideration is whether there was a justifiable case for demolition, given the 
conservation area setting. 

Non Material Considerations 

None 

  

Page 26 of 32

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application was advertised by site and press notices. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Abbey Road 72, 
Coulton Street 1, 2, 
High Street 4, 4A, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

1 0 1 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Historic England (North West) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 20/06/2019  

“Demolition notice required prior to commencement.” 

 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 20/06/2019  

“no comment” 

 
Historic England (North West) 15/07/2019  

We understand that works are currently being carried out to remove some of the debris 
resulting from the collapsed building.  You have also advised that further information would 
shortly be available in the form of an updated position from the applicant’s structural 
engineer. 

 

Page 27 of 32

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



Our own structural engineer has been involved in this case and has had site meetings with 
some of the parties involved.  We understand that there is some prospect of retaining more 
of the building than originally envisaged.  This would certainly be our favoured position in 
the circumstances given the impact of any loss on the character and appearance of the 
conservation area. A gap site would clearly have a harmful impact and one which we would 
seek to avoid. 

 Given there is now some doubt over the original proposals to remove the whole building we 
do not consider there is clear and convincing justification for the harm to the conservation 
area that would be caused by the wholesale demolition of the building as required by 
paragraph 194 of the NPPF. 

 We look forward to receiving further information from the applicant’s engineer when this 
becomes available.  In the meantime we can confirm that we cannot support this 
application.” 

   

Historic England (North West) 22/08/2019  

"Thank you for your consultation regarding the above application. On the basis of the 
information available to date, in our view you do not need to notify or consult us on this 
application under the relevant statutory provisions. 

If you consider that this application does fall within one of the relevant categories, or you 
have other reasons for seeking our advice, please contact us to discuss your request." 

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The application relates to the former registry office building which occupied a prominent 
position on Abbey Road between  DS Fitness Centre and Wetherspoons; the rear elevation 
faced  onto High Street .Whilst not listed, the building was located within the Central Barrow 
Conservation Area and was a visually imposing and handsomely detailed three storey brick 
building first appearing on the 1892 OS map as a Masonic Hall. The location is commercial 
in nature, forming one of Barrow's main thoroughfares and the site falls within the Town 
Centre area as defined in the Local Plan. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 This is a retrospective application for planning permission for demolition of the former 
registry office building located within a conservation area. 

 

 

Page 28 of 32

Page 56

Agenda Item 8



3. Relevant History 

 
3.1 1980/1048 74 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Change of use to ground floor sales first 
floor storage and offices Appcond 02/12/1980 
 
3.2 1981/0813 74 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Alterations to the external appearance to 
implement change of use 80/1048 Appcond 11/11/1981 
 
3.3 1984/1048 74 Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furness Change of use from removals firm 
Appcond 10/01/1985 
 
83/1992/0662 Co-Op 76-80 Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UB Internally 
illuminated projecting sign Appcond 02/11/1992 
 
3.4 94/1995/9008 The Register Office 74 Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Erection of an 
external staircase to the rear elevation to provide alternative means of escape (County 
Matter) 27/09/1995 
 
3.5 B07/2009/0126 74 Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5UB Conversion of 
three storey office building to form thirteen flats. Appcond 08-APR-2009 
 
3.6 B20/2014/0792 The Furness Railway Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 
5UB Change of use from vacant former retail space to allow extension of existing public 
house on ground floor and creation of a 50 bedroom hotel with rooms on ground, first and 
second floors including minor external changes. Appcond 04-FEB-2015 

4. Officer Assessment 

National Guidance 

4.1 National guidance seeks to safeguard the significance of heritage assets and requires 
clear and convincing justification for any harm. In addition, Section 72 of the Act requires 
that "special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 
character or appearance of that area".  

4.2 Demolition of an unlisted building in a conservation area without planning permission is a 
criminal offence. The defences and penalties are the same as for listed buildings. It is a 
defence to proceedings to show that works to the building were urgently necessary in the 
interests of health and safety or for the preservation of the building; they were the minimum 
necessary and temporary works of repairs, support or shelter were not practicable; and, 
notice in writing justifying the works was given to the Planning Authority as soon as 
reasonably practicable. 

 

 

 

Page 29 of 32

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



Local Plan Policies 

4.3 Policy HE5 relates to demolition in a conservation area and requires proposals to meet 
one of three criteria to be permitted. In this case the proposal was considered to meet 
criteria (b): "The building is in poor structural condition and the cost of repairing 
and maintaining it would be disproportionate to its importance and value." 

4.4 The owner engaged with officers at an early stage as to the development potential of the 
building, but during surveys it became clear that the building was potentially unstable, and 
may need some partial demolition to relieve danger to the public. These works were agreed 
by officers as being urgent and were aimed at relieving danger to the public using Abbey 
Road. High Street was subsequently closed to traffic as a precaution. 

4.5 As a prominent building within the conservation area your officers were keen to retain as 
much of the building as possible, even if this only resulted in facade retention. During the 
course of the initial works, information was provided that the building was in too dangerous 
a condition to save and this was supported by structural engineers reports. Video evidence 
was supplied during an early phase of partial demolition of the upper side section which was 
visibly leaning over the DS studio building.  The video showed a large section of perished 
mortar and brickwork which could be pushed over by hand. It was apparent that there were 
public safety implications given the close proximity to other buildings and a busy 
thoroughfare. 

4.6 Regardless of the fact that the building has now been demolished, planning consent is 
still required. 

4.7 In normal circumstances, when an application is received for demolition of a building in 
the conservation area, and sufficient justification for approval has been provided, a condition 
is attached to ensure that demolition does not take place until a contract has been let for re-
development of the site. This is to ensure that a gap site within the conservation area does 
not result. Delays have taken place with this application as your officers have sought to 
ensure that, despite the urgent demolition work, a scheme for re-development of the site 
was agreed even if only in terms of short-term environmental improvements, until proposals 
could be prepared for re-development of the site. It is understood from discussions with the 
owner and agent that proposals are being developed. Rather than keep the application 
outstanding any longer it has been agreed with the applicant that a condition could be 
imposed to require proposals to be submitted for either an environmental improvement of 
the site or re-development within 2 months, whichever is the sooner. 

  

5. Conclusions 

5.1 It is regrettable that the building could not be retained, particularly given its positive 
contribution to the conservation area. However, there was strong evidence to show that 
structurally the building was unsound and beyond economic repair. A condition is proposed 
to try and improve the current open appearance and encourage re-development proposals 
to be brought forward, and this should ultimately satisfy the test criteria within the Act. 

Page 30 of 32

Page 58

Agenda Item 8



 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration Limit 
and the following conditions : - 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
1. Within 2 months of the date of the planning permission hereby approved full written 
proposals shall be submitted for either: 
(a) an environmental improvement of the site; 
(b) re-development of the site. 
 
Reason 
 
The site falls within the Central Barrow Conservation Area on Abbey Road, which is a 
prominent thoroughfare, where a gap site would not normally be supported due to the 
detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area. Due to the 
proven dangerous nature of the structure and the subsequent urgent demolition, the normal 
practice of ensuring that work did not commence until a contract had been let for re-
development could not apply. This condition is required to ensure that the site is enhanced 
within an appropriate timescale that minimises the impact upon the locality. 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Page 31 of 32

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



Page 32 of 32

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 8



 
 

Appendices of Policies 
 

 

Note to Members 
 

 

Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the 

agenda today. 
 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 
 

 

NPPF-008 

Achieving sustainable development means that the planning system has three 

overarching objectives, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually 

supportive ways (so that opportunities can be taken to secure net gains across each of 

the different objectives): 

 
a) an economic objective - to help build a strong, responsive and competitive economy, 

by ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right places and at 

the right time to support growth, innovation and improved productivity; and by identifying 

and coordinating the provision of infrastructure; 
 

 

b) a social objective - to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by ensuring 

that a sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to meet the needs of 

present and future generations; and by fostering a well-designed and safe built 

environment, with accessible services and open spaces that reflect current and future 

needs and support communities' health, social and cultural well-being; and 
 

 

c) an environmental objective - to contribute to protecting and enhancing our natural, 

built and historic environment; including making effective use of land, helping to improve 

biodiversity, using natural resources prudently, minimising waste and pollution, and 

mitigating and adapting to climate change, including moving to a low carbon economy. 
 
 

 
NPPF-091 

Planning policies and decisions should aim to achieve healthy, inclusive and safe places 

which: 
 

 

a) promote social interaction, including opportunities for meetings between people who 

might not otherwise come into contact with each other - for example through mixed-use 

developments, strong neighbourhood centres, street layouts that allow for easy 

pedestrian and cycle connections within and between neighbourhoods, and active street 

frontages; 
 

 

b) are safe and accessible, so that crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not 

undermine the quality of life or community cohesion - for example through the use of 

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



clear and legible pedestrian routes, and high quality public space, which encourage the 

active and continual use of public areas; and 
 

 

c) enable and support healthy lifestyles, especially where this would address identified 

local health and well-being needs - for example through the provision of safe and 

accessible green infrastructure, sports facilities, local shops, access to healthier food, 

allotments and layouts that encourage walking and cycling. 
 

 

NPPF-127 

Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments: 

 
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term 

but over the lifetime of the development; 
 

 

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and 

effective landscaping; 
 

 

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 

environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 

innovation or change (such as increased densities); 
 

 

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 

spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive 

places to live, work and visit; 
 

 

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount 

and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local 

facilities and transport networks; and 
 

 

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 

well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users (Planning 

policies for housing should make use of the Government's optional technical standards 

for accessible and adaptable housing, where this would address an identified need for 

such properties. Policies may also make use of the nationally described space standard, 

where the need for an internal space standard can be justified); and where crime and 

disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community 

cohesion and resilience. 
 

 

NPPF-150 

New development should be planned for in ways that: 
 

 

a) avoid increased vulnerability to the range of impacts arising from climate change. 

When new development is brought forward in areas which are vulnerable, care should 

be taken to ensure that risks can be managed through suitable adaptation measures, 

including through the planning of green infrastructure; and 
 

 

Page 62

Agenda Item 8



b) can help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, such as through its location, 

orientation and design. Any local requirements for the sustainability of buildings should 

reflect the Government's policy for national technical standards. 

 
NPPF-170 

Planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local 

environment by: 
 

 

a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value 

and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in 

the development plan); 
 

 

b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider 

benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services - including the economic and other 

benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and woodland; 
 

 

c) maintaining the character of the undeveloped coast, while improving public access to 

it where appropriate; 
 

 

d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by 

establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future 

pressures; 
 

 

e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at 

unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, air, 

water or noise pollution or land instability. Development should, wherever possible, help 

to improve local environmental conditions such as air and water quality, taking into 

account relevant information such as river basin management plans; and 
 

 

f) remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and unstable 

land, where appropriate. 
 

 

NPPF-175 

When determining planning applications, local planning authorities should apply the 

following principles: 
 

 

a) if significant harm to biodiversity resulting from a development cannot be avoided 

(through locating on an alternative site with less harmful impacts),adequately mitigated, 

or, as a last resort, compensated for, then planning permission should be refused; 
 

 

b) development on land within or outside a Site of Special Scientific Interest, and which 

is likely to have an adverse effect on it (either individually or in combination with other 

developments), should not normally be permitted. The only exception is where the 

benefits of the development in the location proposed clearly outweigh both its likely

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



 

 
impact on the features of the site that make it of special scientific interest, and any 

broader impacts on the national network of Sites of Special Scientific Interest; 
 

 

c) development resulting in the loss or deterioration of irreplaceable habitats (such as 

ancient woodland and ancient or veteran trees) should be refused, unless there are 

wholly exceptional reasons (For example, infrastructure projects (including nationally 

significant infrastructure projects, orders under the Transport and Works Act and hybrid 

bills), where the public benefit would clearly outweigh the loss or deterioration of habitat) 

and a suitable compensation strategy exists; and 
 

 

d) development whose primary objective is to conserve or enhance biodiversity should 

be supported; while opportunities to incorporate biodiversity improvements in and 

around developments should be encouraged, especially where this can secure 

measurable net gains for biodiversity. 

 

Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 
 

 

Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 

When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to 

ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 

find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be 

approved wherever possible. 
 

 

The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking 

an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic 

environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider 

choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and 

to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and 

environmental gains for the Borough. 
 

 

Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without 

delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

 

Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 

date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless 

material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 
 

 

a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 

outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning 

Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or

Page 64

Agenda Item 8



 
 

b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that 

development should be restricted. 
 

 
Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 

In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development 

Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should 

meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of 

development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by: 
 

 

a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and 

integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel 

purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education 

facilities; 
 

 

b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at 

junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity; 
 

 

c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that 

proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities 

infrastructure; 
 

 

d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light, 

vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed 

development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels; 
 

 

e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly 

privacy, security and natural light; 
 

 

f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 

development; 
 

 

g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of 

related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other 

environmental assets; 
 

 

h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 
 

 

i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible;

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
 

j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production; 
 

 

k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in 

accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage 

systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk; 
 

 

l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic 

environment including heritage assets and their settings; and 
 

 

m) Development must comply with Policy DS3. 
 

 

Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they 

must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local 

Plan objectives by alternative means. 
 

 

Policy DS5 - Design 

New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of 

attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications 

must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of 

the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's 

Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they: 

 
a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the 

adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning 

Documents; 
 

 

b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their 

setting; 
 

 

c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it; 
 

 

d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces 

that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment; 
 

 

e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas, 

placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the 

motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed;

Page 66

Agenda Item 8



 

 
f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well- 

structured building layout; 
 

 

g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular 

requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character; 
 

 

h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally 

sourced wherever possible; 
 

 

i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating 

key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, 

hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists, 

creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place; 
 

 

j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion 

and public safety; 
 

 

k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can 

contribute to design objectives; 
 

 

l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and 

people with disabilities; 
 

 

m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale; 
 

 

n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and 

water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation 

of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and 
 

 

o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the 

provision of appropriate roof pitches. 
 

 
 
 
 

Policy GI2 - Green Wedges 

Proposals within or adjoining designated Green Wedges will be supported providing that 

they: 
 
 

 
a)    Provide visual relief, physical contrast and visual or physical separation between

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 

b)    Demonstrate how development would respond to, maintain or enhance the open 

character of the Green Wedge; 
 

 

c)    Enhance the biodiversity value of Green Wedges, where possible; 
 

 

d)    Maintain or enhance its value as a setting for recreation; and 

e)    Protect the setting of heritage assets. 

 
 

Policy GI7 - Open Countryside 

Development within the open countryside which accords with the Development Plan will 

be supported providing that it accords with the principles of the Green Infrastructure 

Strategy and recognises and respects the intrinsic character and beauty of the 

countryside 
 

 

Policy HE4 - Conservation Areas 

Development within or affecting the setting of Conservation Areas will only be permitted 

where it preserves or enhances the character or appearance of the Area. Proposals for 

all new development, including alterations and extensions to buildings and their re-use, 

must be sensitive and appropriate to the character of the area. Any replacement feature 

should match the original where it makes a positive contribution to the Conservation 

Area and its setting. 
 

 

Proposals must be supported by any relevant Conservation Area Appraisal or 

Management Plan. In particular it should respect all of the following: 
 

 

a) The character of existing architecture and any historical associations by having due 

regard to positioning and grouping of buildings, form, scale, enclosure, detailing and use 

of traditional materials; 
 

 

b) Existing hard and soft landscape features including open space, trees, walls and 

surfacing; 
 

 

c) Traditional plot boundaries and frontage widths; and 

 

Proposals should also avoid the loss of public and private open space which makes a 

positive contribution to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and its 

setting. 
 

 

Through Conservation Area Appraisals the Council will identify any opportunities for new 

development to enhance or better reveal their significance. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



 

Policy HE5 - Demolition in a Conservation area 

Proposals for the demolition of a building in a Conservation Area must demonstrate one 

of the following criteria: 
 

 

a)    It is unrealistic for the building to continue in its existing use and a suitable 

alternative use cannot be found; or 
 

 

b)    The building is in poor structural condition and the cost of repairing and 

maintaining it would be disproportionate to its importance and value; or 
 

 

c)    The demolition would preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the 

Conservation Area. 
 

 

Proposals for the demolition or substantial loss of a building which makes a positive 

contribution to the special character and appearance of a conservation area will not be 

permitted unless it can be demonstrated that the tests in national planning policy can be 

met. 
 

 
Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and geodiversity 

The Council will support development which maintains, protects and enhances 

biodiversity across the Borough. Proposals for new development should minimise 

impacts on biodiversity and provide net gains in biodiversity where possible. Proposals 

will be expected to improve access to important biodiversity areas, and will be required 

to show full details of measures to achieve this in the form of a suitable Management 

Plan. Consideration must be given to the Council's Biodiversity and Development 

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and any other relevant guidance. 
 

 

Designated biodiversity and geodiversity sites 
 
 

There is a presumption in favour of the preservation and enhancement of sites of 

international and national importance. Development proposals that would cause a direct 

or indirect adverse effect on any site of international or national importance, including its 

qualifying habitats and species will only be permitted where the Council and relevant 

partner organisations are satisfied that: 
 

 

.;    The adverse effect cannot be avoided (for example through locating the 

development on an alternative site); and 
 

 

.;     Any adverse impacts can be mitigated for example through appropriate habitat 

creation, restoration or enhancement on site or in another appropriate location, in 

agreement with the Council and relevant partner  organisations, via planning 

conditions, agreements or obligations. 
 

 

Where mitigation is not possible or viable or where there would still be significant 

residual harm following mitigation, compensation measures should be made to provide 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



 

an area of equivalent or greater biodiversity value. Compensation should be secured 

through planning conditions or planning obligations. 
 

 

Special compensation considerations apply in the case of Natura 2000 sites. If harm to 

such sites is allowed because the development meets the above criteria and imperative 

reasons of overriding public interest have been demonstrated, the European Habitats 

and Wild Birds Directive requires that all necessary compensatory measures are taken 

to ensure the overall coherence of the network of European Sites as a whole is 

protected. 
 

 

Local wildlife sites and geological designations such as County wildlife sites, wildlife 

corridors and Local Geological Sites (LGS) will be afforded a high degree of protection 

from potentially harmful development, unless a strong socio-economic need can be 

demonstrated and the development cannot be situated in a less sensitive location. 
 

 

Assessing the effects of development on biodiversity and geodiversity 
 

 

Proposals for new development which may result in significant harm to biodiversity must 

be accompanied by appropriate surveys, undertaken by a suitably qualified person, to 

identify the potential effects of development. In such cases, the mitigation hierarchy, as 

referenced in the Council's Biodiversity and Development SPD should be applied and it 

must be demonstrated that avoidance measures have been considered and justification 

for ruling these out must be given. Where significant harm is avoidable, it should be 

 adequately mitigated, or as a last resort, compensated for. 
 

 

Where mitigation is required in the form of species translocation, the Council will work 

with partners to identify suitable sites for translocation. 
 

 

Where there is evidence to suspect the presence of protected species, the planning 

application should be accompanied by appropriate, up-to-date surveys carried out at the 

correct time of year for the particular species assessing their presence to ensure that the 

proposal is sympathetic to the ecological interests of the site. 
 

 

Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features 

New development should conserve and enhance biodiversity features, and proposals for 

new development should be submitted with landscaping proposals, including a 

Management Plan, which show how existing trees, riparian corridors/trees, hedgerows, 

ponds and other wildlife features will be integrated into the development. Landscaping 

proposals should also include new trees and other planting of suitable species for the 

location to enhance the landscape of the site and its surroundings as appropriate. 
 

 

Trees which positively contribute to the visual amenity and environmental value of that 

location will be protected. New development should not result in the loss of or damage 

to ancient woodland or veteran or aged trees outside woodland. 
 

 

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



 

Where the conservation of biodiversity features cannot be achieved, the applicant must 

justify their loss. Where the Council is satisfied that the loss is adequately justified, 

replacement trees, hedgerows, ponds and other wildlife features will be required. 
 

 

Proposals which include landscaping proposals, replacement of wildlife features, new 

wildlife features, or which integrate existing wildlife features into the development, will be 

required to demonstrate that measures will be put in place to manage these features as 

appropriate, including the use of suitable legal agreements. 

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

17th December 2019 
 

 

INDEX 
 

 
 
 

Page Reference  Address Proposal  

2 2019/0683 Plot 11, Mill Lane 
Barrow-in-Furness 

Siting of 2 poly tunnels (partly retrospective) 
 

11 2019/0700 Paddock 5, Haggs Land, 
Millwood Lane Barrow-
in-Furness  

The construction of three general purpose 
buildings for forestry use and secure storage of 
tools, equipment and forestry products 
(retrospective) (amended description).  
 

26 2019/0481 
 

74 Abbey Road, Barrow-
in Furness, 
 
 
 

Application for planning permission for demolition 
of former registry office building located within a 
conservation area (Retrospective)  
 

 

Page 72

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

BOOK 2 FOR DECISION 
 

URGENT ITEM 
 
 

    17th December 2019 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 

The applications within this report have been submitted for determination under the 
Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 

 
All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 

moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 

8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 

 
The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of background 

papers. 
 
 

 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Planning Manager 
 

Page 1 of 18

Page 73

Agenda Item 9



B12/2019/0664 
Planning Committee  
17

th
 December 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B12/2019/0664 Date Valid :03/10/2019 

Address : Kimberly Clark Park Road 
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 4QX 

Case Officer : Jason Hipkiss 

Proposal : Alterations and extensions to the existing paper mill buildings to 
accommodate replacement machinery, the installation of new equipment, additional 
storage and associated work including an outside loading canopy. This includes 
construction works for extensions to existing buildings which will provide approximately 
4,917 sqm of additional industrial floorspace to include pulper buildings, line 7 extension, 
reel store and pallet store. 

Ward : Ormsgill Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr G Rafftery Kimberley Clark 
Limited  

Agent : Mr Martin White Jacobs  

Statutory Date : 02/01/2020 
Recommendation : Permission GRANTED 
with conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C2 - Development and the Coast 
2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 

sustainable development 
3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 

Criteria 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy EC3 - Managing Development of 

Employment Land 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and 

geodiversity 
7. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features 

 

 

Page 2 of 18

Page 74

Agenda Item 9

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B12/2019/0664


Summary of Main Issues 

The application represents a major investment of around £85 million in the Barrow Mill by 
Kimberly Clark (KC) as the company seeks to replace ageing plant and machinery and add 
approximately 5000 m ² extra floor space. The programme consists of 11 projects spread 
across seven broad locations within the plant with a separate contractors compound area 
immediately south of the site at Bank Lane. Outwith the application is a programme of 
internal rearrangement and refurbishment which are exempt from planning consent. The 
anticipated start date is January 2020 with a 50 week build time. 

The main Planning issues will relate to ensuring that, as proposed, the revised plant would 
have no significant environmental impacts either during construction or in subsequent 
operation. 

Non Material Considerations 

Nil 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street 
Name 

Properties 

Bank 
Lane 

Builders Supply Barrow, 5 Kimberley Court, 2 Kimberley Court, 1 Kimberley Court, 
Sowerby Lodge House Kimberley Court, 6 Kimberley Court, 4 Kimberley Court, 3 
Kimberley Court, 

Park 
Road 

CSI Wood Protection Limited, JJC Hire, Harry Barker Properties Meetings Industrial 
Estate, Unit 4 Park Road Industrial Estate, Unit 3H Park Road Industrial Estate, 
Unit 3F Park Road Industrial Estate, Unit 3G Park Road Industrial Estate, Unit 3A 
Park Road Industrial Estate, Unit 3B Park Road Industrial Estate, Unit 3C Park 
Road Industrial Estate, Unit 3E Park Road Industrial Estate, Unit 3D Park Road 
Industrial Estate, Unit 2 Powder Works, Unit 1 Powder Works, Unit 3 Powder 
Works, Unit 4 Powder Works, Sovereign Chemicals Ltd, Waites Pressings Ltd, 

   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 18

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
Electricity North West Ltd 
Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 
Natural England 
Network Rail 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
Walney Airfield 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 04/10/2019  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals”. 

Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination)  
 
17/10/2019  

“Thank you for the above consultation. I have no further comment at this time on the 
documents submitted except to remind the planning department that the facility is covered 
by an Environmental Permit which controls noise on site”.  

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 04/10/2019  

"The BAE site is covered by the provision of the Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and 
Public Information) 2019 Regulations. There are no objections to the proposed 
development based on the information provided but it should be noted that the proposed 
development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of BAE. Cumbria 
County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the Office for Nuclear Regulation, have 
certain special arrangements are made for residents/business premises in this area and 
particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the appropriate action to 
take in the event of an incident at the site. 

Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, 
advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further discussion." 

 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 18

Page 76

Agenda Item 9



 
14/10/2019  

“Cumbria County Council as the Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the submitted material and has the following comments and 
recommendations: 

Highways 

The existing site access and adjoining highway is an established route for the industrial 
traffic to this site.  The immediate network offers high quality and suitable routes for HGV 
and construction traffic.  The LHA does not consider that the proposal will have a material 
impact on the Highway network. 

It is also noted on the drawing ‘Contractor Access Routes and CDM Areas AR.A250/0060 
Rev A’ that suitable areas for parking, lay down of materials and routes for contractors 
vehicles have been identified.  This consideration and planning should help avoid any 
disruption to the access and highway network. 

The LHA therefore has no objection to the proposal”. 

14/10/2019  

“Cumbria County Council as the Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the submitted material and has the following comments and 
recommendations: 

LLFA 

The FRA explores the flood risk from various sources and it is noted that the only 
substantial risk is from surface water flooding with various areas of the site in 1:100 and 
1:1000 year events.  We have noted that the principal source of the SW flooding is from the 
main A590 access via the gatehouse, whereupon it seems to flow south through the site 
and then west towards Walney channel.  It is important to the LHA that this overland flood 
route is maintained for the resilience of the drainage on the A590 and we note that this 
indeed is the proposal. 

The extension of the Line 7 and pulper buildings will extend into the flood risk area and it is 
therefore important to understand the impact and influence this may have on overland flow 
routes, depths and the requirement for new infrastructure.  Some outline details have been 
provided showing the drainage infrastructure and the FRA explains that the overland flows 
will be re-routed to avoid flood risk and that the structures will be resilient to these flows.  

It is also noted that all other areas of redevelopment are over existing hard-standing areas 
and will drain to existing systems so there is no net increase in surface water run-off.  The 
changes are not considered to materially affect the private effluent drainage and treatment 
system. 

 

Page 5 of 18

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



 

Overall, the LLFA conclude that the proposals are acceptable in principle and should 
mitigate against the surface water flood risk. 

We therefore have no objections to the proposals.  We would however recommend that the 
following conditions are included in any consent you might grant in due course: 

Full details of the surface water drainage system (incorporating SUDs features as far 
as practicable), an exceedance diagram (showing Ground and FFLs) and a 
maintenance schedule shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for 
approval prior to development being commenced.  Any approved works shall be 
implemented prior to the development being completed and shall be maintained 
thereafter in accordance with the schedule. 

Reason:        To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage 
the risk of flooding and pollution.  To ensure the surface water system continues to function 
as designed and that flood risk is not increased within the site or elsewhere”. 

Network Rail 11/10/2019  

"The applicant is to fill in the attached form and submit directly to 
AssetProtectionLNWNorth@networkrail.co.uk – they may want to see a RAMS or details of 
scaffolding however, the asset protection team would eb best placed to determine if any 
documentation was needed (including under Building Regs)." 

However, the scheme should be flagged up to Network Rail for the avoidance of doubt and 
in light of the overhead power lines and railway” 

Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 The Kimberley Clark (KC) site is some 1.86 ha and located to the north of the main town 
on the west side of the A590 Park Road. This is the industrial corridor into the town with 
various premises along both sides of the road. To the west is the Furness railway line 
linking the town with Carlisle and towns in between, beyond which is the Duddon Estuary, 
which holds various ecological designations. Adjacent land uses are mainly commercial in 
character whilst the nearest concentration of dwellings is to the east, off Bank Lane. 

1.2 Barrow Mill consists of a mix of industrial plant and buildings of varying heights and 
appearance. Established around 40 years ago, the Mill manufactures tissue products for 
both the domestic and commercial markets, employing some 380 people. In terms of 
layout, the bulk of deliveries enter from Bank Lane to the south and the finished product 
leaves from the warehouse on the northern side via a dedicated HGV route onto Park 
Road. There are two other direct accesses onto the same road; the principal employee car 
park which sits at the front of the warehousing, and the main access which is controlled 
by a gatehouse and barriers. 

Page 6 of 18

Page 78

Agenda Item 9

mailto:AssetProtectionLNWSouth@networkrail.co.uk


 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Alterations and extensions to the existing paper mill buildings to accommodate 
replacement machinery, the installation of new equipment, additional storage and 
associated work including an outside loading canopy. This includes construction works for 
extensions to existing buildings which will provide approximately 4,917 sqm of additional 
industrial floor-space to include pulper buildings, line 7 extension, reel store and pallet 
store. 

The supporting statement offers the following resume of the project; 

"The main objective of the Development is to increase efficiency at the Barrow Paper Mill, 
securing its long-term operation and safeguarding a key local employer in the region. It 
represents a capital investment of approximately £85 million and in this context represents 
one of the largest investments made by Kimberly Clark in a European operation." 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 44/2003/0045 Kimberley Clark Park Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 4QX 
Amendment to 2002/0991 to amend the height of the exhaust stack to 28.5 metres, and 
add a transformer pen to the front elevation Approved 15/05/2003 
 
3.2 44/2005/1177 Kimberley Clark Park Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 4QX 
Extensions on the front and rear elevations to create enlarged production areas and office 
accommodation Appcond 21/09/2005 
 
3.3 B12/2015/0730 Kimberley Clark Park Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 4QX 
Alterations to and erection of industrial buildings and chimney in connection with a change 
of process energy from gas to wood fuel. WITHDRAWN 10/02/2017  

3.4 The NPPF and the Local Plan require applications to be judged, among other things, on 
their environmental impact. In this respect the application was accompanied by a suite of 
environmental studies which seek to show the impact, and mitigation as appropriate, upon 
the local area arising as a result of the proposed expansion. The proposal has already been 
subject to scrutiny through the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Regulations 2017. 
The development comes under Schedule 2 to which section 13 "Changes and Extensions" 
applies. Using delegated powers I have taken the view that the development is, by virtue of 
its nature, scale, and location, together with proposed mitigation, not EIA development. 

 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 18

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



 

4. National Guidance 

4.1 The revised NPPF continues the theme of sustainable development from the 2012 
publication, paragraph 8 setting out the 3 overarching objectives to this; economic, social, 
and environmental. The advice is that sustainable development that accords with these 
objectives and meets with up to date local policies should be approved "without delay" 
(para 11) unless material considerations dictate otherwise as enshrined in planning law 
( para 47). Section 6; Building a Strong Competitive Economy, requires significant weight 
be attached to proposals that support economic growth, taking into account local business 
needs, allowing areas to build on their strengths, and addressing challenges for the future. 
Section 11 "Making effective use of land" promotes the use of under utilised sites, whilst 
Section 15 "Conserving and enhancing the natural environment"  at paragraph 170, seeks 
to prevent new development from adversely impacting upon the natural environment. 

5. Development Plan Policies 

5.1 The Local Plan was adopted in June this year and is therefore considered to be up to 
date. Conformity with the NPPF objectives of sustainable development is found through 
policies DS1 and DS2, whilst design matters are found at policy DS5. The vision of the 
document is to seek development that meet all 3 NPPF sustainability objectives with a list 
of 13 criteria found in DS2. Of relevance are a number of points such as ensuring that 
development respects local infrastructure capacities such as roads, (with mitigation as 
necessary) the incorporation of energy and water efficiencies, respecting residential 
amenities, reusing displaced material on site, and compliance with policy DS3. The latter 
refers to sustainable growth that enhances, amongst others, employment opportunities and 
inward investment. 

5.2 Policy EC3 provides criteria for the development of new or extended employment land. 
these can be summarised as citing a preference for sustainable, comprehensive schemes 
that are suitably laid out, having mitigation in place to prevent adverse environmental and 
infrastructure capacity impacts. 

Policies N3 and N4 specifically relate to assessing the potential impacts of new 
development upon local biodiversity interests. Impacts should be minimal and seek to 
provide net gains in biodiversity via a suitable management plan showing how this will be 
achieved. Any net losses must be fully justified. 

6. Proposal 

The proposed scheme is extensive and can be summarised as; 

6.1 Area 1 New bale loading and pulper buildings: construct three new buildings to the 
north of South Gate House and parallel to the east of the existing PM3 Pulp Conveyor in 
this area. Works include a new building to enclose two new bale conveyors, a new building 
to enclose two new pulpers and a new flume extension building. The unit will be unmanned 
and be operated from an existing control block. The highest part of the structure is shown 
as 11.5m. 

Page 8 of 18

Page 80

Agenda Item 9



 

6.2 Area 2 Tissue Machine 5: Works in this area will be undertaken on the existing tissue 
machine No. 5 (TM5) and consist of roof removal and replacement along with external 
works and internal refurbishment. 

6.3 Area 3 Dryer Building and Waste Heat Transfer Area: Works will be undertaken on 
the existing dryer building and waste heat transfer area and consist of external 
modifications to the buildings associated with new equipment to be installed in this area. 

6.4 Area 4 Electrical Switch room: Works on an existing vacuum pump-house and 
including external modifications to buildings associated with new equipment to be installed 
in this area. 

6.5 Area 5 Line 7 Extension: construction of a new single storey steel framed building 
extension to house the new converting line 7 and an associated new building to house the 
dust plant enclosure. These new buildings would form a southwards extension of the 
current building behind the Main Offices and in front of the Main Entrance of the site. The 
unit will be unmanned and be operated from the existing control block. Construction of a 
new office and welfare facility. 

6.6 Area 7 New reel store: a new open steel framed clad building constructed in the north 
western part of the site.  

6.7 Area 8 Lagoon: the works consist of transforming this area into a new lay-down area 
using compacted material. 

6.8 Area 10 New pallet store: Proposed steel framed and metal cladding new building that 
would be constructed to the east elevation of the finished product warehouse, to a height of 
8.4m 

6.9 Area 11 New canopy for outside loading: Proposed new steel framed and metal 
cladding structure capable of accommodating two trucks and constructed to the north of the 
finished product warehouse. Height approximately 10.6m.  

6.10 Area 12 Contractors car park and lay-down area: This area would be to the south of 
Barrow Mill site and in front of the South Gate. 

7. Planning Assessment 

7.1 The Barrow Mill is a highly visible sprawling complex of buildings, open spaces (with 
various functions such as storage, distribution and parking), and numerous sections of plant 
and machinery. The scope of the works is spread across the entirely of the site, with 
varying degrees of scale and complexity. It is a mix of refurbishments, enclosures and 
extensions to existing structures but almost all within the existing built envelope of the Mill 
complex. 

 

Page 9 of 18

Page 81

Agenda Item 9



 

 

7.2 The only exceptions are Areas 8 and 12 in the SW corner. This is a redundant concrete 
lined lagoon which stored water for emergency purposes, and previously superseded by a 
storage tank. The proposal is to infill the lagoon with reclaimed demolition material to create 
an open storage area. In addition Area 12 would be utilised as a temporary lay-down and 
car parking area for contractors. This is located on the south site of Bank Lane, west of the 
A590. and enables the existing access off Park Road to be used by construction traffic. 

7.3 The main developments in terms of floorspace are the extension to the production line in 
Area 5 (1239m²) at the front of the site facing Park Road, and the reel store in Area 7 to the 
rear of the site (1280m²). Area 5 consists of an extension to the existing Line building, an 
enclosure for dust scrubbing plant, and an office block and welfare facility. The extension is 
shown as an 11.5m high metal clad structure in line with the scale and mass of the adjacent 
production building. The Area 7 reel store is an infill extension at the rear of the main 
production building to create addition storage space. Constructed in matching colour metal 
cladding, it follows the existing ridge line, at 12m high, and extends in line with the rear wall. 
It has limited visual impact due to its backland position. 

7.4 In light of the operational nature of the proposed scheme, there are limited opportunities 
for enhanced design touches. The external appearances are mostly functional consisting of 
coloured metal sheeted buildings and various items of plant and machinery in differing 
finishes and heights. In this respect the new and revised buildings blend in with the rest of 
the site appearance. Where appropriate the cladding has been shown in KC corporate 
colours of grey with blue trims, again matching buildings elsewhere on site. I am satisfied 
that there is broad compliance with design criteria raised in the Local Plan. 

Environmental Impacts 

Landscape & Ecology 

7.5 The project has been subject to an extended Phase 1 Habitat survey which took into 
account the character and importance of on-site and neighbouring habitats (which 
included the SAC Ramsar and SSSI designations to the west) and the potential for any 
significant impacts upon them. Habitats within the Mill site are essentially a mix of natural 
scrub and grassland, amenity and introduced grassland along the front boundary with the 
A590, and a single body of water which is the obsolete water storage lagoon. 

7.6 The majority of the permanent works are located within the existing Mill envelope, the 
lagoon infilling working being just outside to the south. The overall summary was that any 
impacts are localised to the application site and, with suitable mitigation, will not be 
significant. 

 

 

Page 10 of 18

Page 82

Agenda Item 9



 

7.7 The new structures will sit within a similar mix of buildings and external  plant, so visually 
the impact is not significant within either the immediate or wider environment. A series 
of assessments submitted with the application suggest that  whilst there will no discernible 
impact upon the Designated Sites to the west a limited amount of species and habitats 
would be affected as part of the project within the site boundaries. This is focussed 
around the infill works centred on the redundant lagoon which has trees planted within a 
scrub grassland around its boundaries. Around 40 trees would be removed, although the 
assessment shows that these are predominantly common species of low value and a mix of 
self seeded and planted specimens. Whilst no compensatory planting is indicated in the 
submission, a landscaping condition has been agreed to provide for replacements. 
Retained trees will be subject to a programme of protection using suitable fencing to 
prevent damage to trees and root systems 

7.8 As an isolated water body (albeit artificial) it has been surveyed and ascertained to be of 
some value for common toads. To mitigate any potentially harmful impacts, a working 
statement will be drafted along the following lines; draining between Sept-Nov which is 
between the breeding and hibernation seasons. Draining equipment will be fitted with fine 
mesh screens to intercept any toads or amphibians that may be left in the lagoon and any 
found will be repatriated to a suitable location. The surrounding scrubland has potential for 
reptiles and this is recognised in the submitted environmental report. To compensate, there 
will be some form of reptile habitat creation in that log piles from the tree felling will be 
positioned on periphery locations. Fuller details can be obtained via a suitable condition.  

7.9 One particular benefit would be the removal of a large area of japanese knotweed. This 
will be carried out in accordance with best practise including disposal at a licensed site. 

Noise and Vibration 

7.10 Plan Policy DS2 contains criteria that seek to ensure that the health and environmental 
effects of new developments are within acceptable levels. Para 180 of the NPPF requires 
the mitigation of noise from new schemes. 

7.11 In 2016, a noise survey to establish background noise levels was carried out. This was 
to support an application for a biomass boiler, and the parameters were agreed in 
consultation with the Borough Env Health section. Only 3 years old, the data is still 
considered to be representative. Against this baseline information the applicants have 
modelled potential impacts from the construction and operational phases. 

7.12 These are the two sources for increasing noise and vibration; the construction phase 
and the subsequent operational phase, the obvious difference being that the former is 
temporary. The usual policy approach is to require a Construction Environment 
Management Plan (CEMP) in order to ascertain any likely issues arising from activities such 
as demolition or from HGV vehicle movements during antisocial hours, Sundays or Bank 
Holidays (such as in the need for large scale concrete base pours). 

 

Page 11 of 18

Page 83

Agenda Item 9



 

 

7.13 The Borough Public Protection Officer has agreed to the report findings. It is recognised 
that ,due to the Barrow Mill’s relative isolation from sensitive locations (such as homes and 
schools) and the high daytime background levels sourced from the A590, predicated noise 
levels are still expected to be below recognised acceptable levels. 

7.14 Mitigation will be employed in the form of restricting working hours to the BS5228 
standard of 0700-1900 weekdays and 0700-1300 Saturdays, with no noisy activity on 
Sundays and Bank Holidays. Best practises will also be employed including, for example, 
the use of noise attenuation such as acoustic shielding, sensitively locating plant items such 
as generators, and simple methods such as turning engines off rather than allowing them to 
idle for long periods. 

7.15 Noise from the completed development has been modelled, again using the 2016 
baselines of current and background noise levels, and also taking into account the 24/7 
operational nature of the Mill. Acoustic cladding will be used in the overall construction and 
where possible ventilation apertures and louvres have been avoided. It should be noted that 
the site is subject to an Environmental Permit issued by the Environment Agency. As such 
this offers a further layer of protection for adjacent sensitive locations, should the nature 
and level of future noise from the extended Mill become adverse. 

Air Quality 

7.16 As with noise the isolated position of the Mill relative to sensitive locations means that 
there is unlikely to be any adverse impact arising from dust or other emissions. During the 
construction phase any dust from construction vehicles can be countered by regular road 
sweeping and damping down in prolonged dry spells. Vehicle emissions have not been 
assessed as HGV movements associated with the build stage are anticipated to be below 
the daily flow rates deemed to warrant a separate study. 

7.17 Operational emissions are already controlled by the existing Environmental Permit for 
the Mill, and if planning consent is granted the Permit would need updating to reflect the 
extended nature of the site. 

Transport 

7.18 The site is conveniently located next to the A590 which gives effective access to the 
trunk road network and on to the M6 without passing through significantly built up areas. 
Current employee vehicle movements are around 500 per weekday and 160 at weekends, 
and the sites accesses have been constructed to accommodate these levels. The general 
nature of this will not change as a result of the new development once complete. 

 

 

Page 12 of 18

Page 84

Agenda Item 9



 

7.19 The supporting information suggests that the South Gate will be used as the 
construction access, but recognises that as contractors operate in different ways the exact 
number and nature of vehicle movements for this phase is unknown. Between 10-50 
movements is realistic, but is accepted as being temporary and likely to be concentrated 
outside of the am and pm peak hours. Cumbria Highways have raised no objection, the 
construction phase being recognised as being within the network capacity. The CEMP will 
address this in greater detail. 

Flood Risk 

7.20 National guidance and Local planning policies identify that new schemes should not be 
at risk from flooding nor compromise the potential for flooding elsewhere. The use of SuDs 
is required where physically possible in order to reduce the burden on piped systems with 
mitigation allowed for aquifer areas and where geology prevents a fully sustainable solution 
being employed. 

7.21 The Mill site neither lies within Flood Zone 1, i.e. area of least risk, nor is tidal flooding 
an issue. The existing site has large areas of hardstandings some of which will be used for 
the new buildings, and a significant amount of roof area. At present the site is served by a 
network of surface water drains, some through interceptors. Cumulatively these drain into 
watercourses that have been culverted across the site. Historically there is no history of 
localised flooding on site, although some ponding occurs on various hard surfaced areas, 
and overland flows could be high during a storm event.  Based upon the supporting 
information, the current system is considered to be suitable, but as part of the project it will 
be altered to take account of new flow paths arising from the additional buildings and hard 
standings. Account is also taken of the fact that there may be uncharted watercourse on 
site and their excavation may require further alteration of the surface water network. The 
County Council as LLFA, has requested to see the finalised design and a suitable condition 
is attached. 

8. Conclusions 

8.1 Kimberly Clark Ltd is implementing a project to extend and alter their Paper Mill in 
Barrow-in-Furness to increase productivity and efficiency, as it is necessary to replace large 
scale equipment that is near the end of its design life. This would improve the overall 
sustainability and efficiency of the Barrow Mill operation as it would require less materials to 
be used in the production process whilst raising production levels. The project ,which is 
estimated to represent an investment of some £85 million, provides significant economic 
benefits for Barrow, safeguarding the long-term future of a major employer in the town. With 
regard to design and access, the new buildings within the work areas of the development 
have been designed to fit into the existing surroundings with matching materials and in 
either similar or smaller scales than existing buildings in terms of height and width. Access 
arrangements will remain as existing and it is anticipated that the number of vehicles 
accessing and egressing the site will not change once the scheme is completed. 

 

Page 13 of 18

Page 85

Agenda Item 9



 

 

8.2 The application is supported by assessments which conclude that the development will 
not have any significant negative impact on the environment following the implementation of 
appropriate mitigation measures. Conditions have been recommended in order to finalise 
some details which require greater scrutiny as the project evolves. Overall, the 
development provides significant economic benefits for Barrow, safeguarding the long-term 
future of a major employer in the town. The development is considered to be in accordance 
with planning policy contained in the provisions of the NPPF and Boroughs development 
plan, and should be supported in line with the recommendation. 

 
9. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration 
Limit and the following conditions : - 

1.The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated 17th September 2019 and the hereby approved documents defined by 
this permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent.  

Site Plan AR.A250/0002 Rev A  
Proposed Plan Line 7 Extension Building AR.A250/0012 Rev A  
Proposed Plan Line 7 Extension Building AR.A250/0013 Rev A  
Proposed Plan Reel Store Building AR.A250/0022 Rev A  
Proposed Elevations Reel Store Building AR.A250/0023 Rev A  
Proposed Plan Pulper Building AR.A250/0032 Rev A  
Proposed Elevations Pulper Building AR.A250/0033 Rev A  
Proposed Plan Outside Loading Canopy AR.A250/0042 Rev A  
Proposed Elevations Outside Loading Canopy AR.A250/0043 Rev A  
Proposed Plan Pallet Store AR.A250/0052 Rev A  
Proposed Elevations Pallet Store AR.A250/0053 Rev A  
Proposed Plan Line 7 External Works Demolition Requirements C.C301/7005  

New Drainage Requirements Line 7 C.C301/7007  
Contractor Access Routes and CDM Areas AR.A250/0060 Rev A  
Environmental Assessment Report 60SG8000/AR.A250/1000/Rev.0 12 September 2019  
Flood Risk Assessment 60SG8000/AR.A250/2200-002 Final 12th September 2019 
Planning, Design & Access Statement 60SG8000/AR.A250/1000/0 September 2019 
Preliminary Risk Assessment 60SG8000/AR.A250/2100 Rev 0 12 September 2019 PRA 
Envirocheck Report Appendices A – 1, A-2, A-3. 

Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 

Page 14 of 18

Page 86

Agenda Item 9



 

 

2. Prior to the beneficial occupation of any part of the development, (or in accordance with a 
phasing scheme as shall be agreed beforehand with the Planning Authority) a landscape 
scheme for the site, showing the trees, shrubs and hedgerows, including verges and other 
open spaces, together with details of a timetable for implementation, (including any phasing 
of such a scheme) must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 
The scheme shall be submitted on a plan not greater that 1:500 in scale and shall contain 
details of numbers, locations and species of plants to be used. The scheme shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details, and all planting and subsequent 
maintenance shall be to current British Standards. 
 
 
Reason 
 
In order to ensure that the development accords with planning policy N4 by providing 
replacement planting elsewhere on the site. 

3. Full details of the surface water drainage system (incorporating SUDs features as far as 
practicable), an exceedance diagram (showing Ground and FFLs) and a maintenance 
schedule shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Planning Authority for 
approval prior to installation. Any approved works shall be implemented prior to the 
development being substantially completed and shall be maintained thereafter in 
accordance with the schedule. 

Reason 

To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of 
flooding and pollution. To ensure the surface water system continues to function as 
designed and that flood risk is not increased within the site or elsewhere. 

4. Full details of the reptile habitat creation proposal, as indicated in section 5.7 of the 
Environmental Assessment Report 60SG8000/AR.A250/1000/Rev.0 dated 12 September 
2019 shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Planning Authority, prior to 
installation. Any approved works shall be implemented prior to any beneficial use of the 
location defined as Area 8 in the application and shall be maintained thereafter in 
accordance with the approved details unless the Planning Authority agrees to any variation. 

Reason 

In order to ensure that the development accords with Local Plan policies N3 and N4 which 
seek to protect, enhance and manage biodiversity across the Borough. 

 

 

Page 15 of 18

Page 87

Agenda Item 9



 

 
 
Informative 
  

 Prior to works commencing, the applicant is advised to contact Network Rail to 
discuss work practices adjacent to the railway land boundary 

 Prior to works commencing he applicant is advised to contact Cumbria CC 
Emergency Planning to discuss procedures associated with any incident at BAe 
Barrow. 

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

  

   

Page 16 of 18

Page 88

Agenda Item 9



2019/0664

Page 17 of 18

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 9



2019/0664

Page 18 of 18

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 9



 
 

Appendices of Policies 
 

 

Note to Members 
 

 

Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the 

agenda today. 

 

Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 
 

 

Policy C2 - Development and the Coast 

Development in a coastal location will only be permitted where: 
 

 

a) There will be no unacceptable harm to natural coastal processes, including increasing 

the risk of flooding, coastal erosion and instability; 

 
b) There will be no unacceptable harm to habitats, species, geodiversity, designated 

sites and the historic environment; 
 

 

c) The capacity of the coast to form a natural sea defence or adjust to changes in 

conditions without risk to life or property will not be prejudiced; 
 

 

d) There will not be an increased need for additional sea walls or other civil engineering 

works (defence structures) for coastal protection purposes except where necessary to 

protect existing investment; 
 

 

e) The open character of the undeveloped coast is maintained, with the existing 

landscape character of the site respected and reinforced; 
 

 

f) Local fisheries will not be prejudiced; 
 

 

g) There will be no unacceptable adverse effect on people's enjoyment of natural 

landscape character; and 
 

 

h) There will be no adverse effect on recreational activities at the coast. 
 

 

Opportunities to improve access to the coast will be sought where possible and where 

the above criteria can be met. 
 

 

Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 

When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to 

ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 

find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be 

approved wherever possible. 
 

 

Page 91

Agenda Item 9



The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking 

an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic 

environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider 

choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and 

to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and environmental 

gains for the Borough. 
 

 

Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without 

delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

 

Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 

date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless    

material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 
 

 

a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 

outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning 

Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or 
 

 

b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that 

development should be restricted. 

 
Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 

In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development 

Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should 

meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of 

development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by: 
 

 

a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and 

integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel 

purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education 

facilities; 
 

 

b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at 

junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity; 
 

 

c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that 

proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities 

infrastructure; 
 

 

d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light, 

vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed 

development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels; 
 

 

e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly 

privacy, security and natural light; 
 

 

Page 92

Agenda Item 9



f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 

development; 
 

 

g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of 

related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other 

environmental assets; 
 

 

h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 
 

 

i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible; 
 

 

j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production; 
 

 

k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in 

accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage 

systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk; 
 

 

l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic 

environment including heritage assets and their settings; and 
 

 

m) Development must comply with Policy DS3. 
 

 

Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they 

must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local 

Plan objectives by alternative means. 
 

 

Policy DS5 - Design 

New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of 

attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications 

must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of 

the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's 

Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they: 

 

a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the 

adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning 

Documents; 
 

 

b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their 

setting; 
 

 

c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 93

Agenda Item 9



d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces 
that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment; 
 

 

e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas, 

placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the 

motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed; 
 

 

f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well- 

structured building layout; 
 

 

g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular 

requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character; 
 

 

h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally 

sourced wherever possible; 
 

 

i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating 

key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, 

hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists, 

creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place; 
 

 

j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion 

and public safety; 
 

 

k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can 

contribute to design objectives; 
 

 

l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and 

people with disabilities; 
 

 

m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale; 
 

 

n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and 

water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation 

of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and 
 

 

o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the 

provision of appropriate roof pitches. 

 
Policy EC3 - Managing Development of Employment Land 

Proposals for new employment uses (classes B1, B2 and B8), or the extension of 

existing premises used for employment uses, will be approved subject to meeting all of 

the following criteria: 
 

 

a)    The site is located within or directly adjoining the built up area of Barrow or Dalton, 

or within the development cordons identified in the housing chapter; 
 

Page 94

Agenda Item 9



 

b)    Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively; 
 

 

c)    The use will not unduly impact upon the residential amenities of those living nearby 

due to noise, disturbance from traffic, hours of operation, external storage, light pollution, 

vibration or airborne emissions including odours; 
 

 

d)    Traffic generated by the proposal is capable of being satisfactorily accommodated 

within the highway network; 
 

 

e)    A Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) will be required for proposals for major sites 

(sites over 5,000 m2), schemes likely to generate in excess of 100 HGV movements 

daily, or any development that may impact on the Trunk Road network; 
 

 

f)    The site has been designed to promote user accessibility by walking, cycling and 

public transport; 
 

 

g)    The layout of the site has suitable space for landscaping, parking (including for 

large vehicles where appropriate), loading and unloading and any other operational 

requirements, and responds to natural drainage flow patterns; 
 

 

h)    Development must create safe and secure environments that minimise 

opportunities for crime and promote community safety; 
 

 

i)    The development is sustainable in its energy usage, environmental impact, waste 

management, flood risk and transport implications; 
 

 

j)    Adequate protection of groundwater from pollution from the storage, handling or use 

of chemicals can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority; 

especially on sites within the St. Bees Sandstone Major Aquifer as shown on the 

Proposals Map; 
 

 

k)    The proposal does not use the best and most versatile agricultural land (grade 3a 

and above) unless it is demonstrated that the loss is outweighed by other planning 

considerations; 

l)    The proposal complies with the relevant policies in the Development Plan; and 

m)    The proposal should make effective use of previously developed land where 

possible. 
 

 
Trade counters and retailing from employment premises will be restricted to those which 

are ancillary for the main operation of the B1/B2/B8 business. 

 

 

 
 

Page 95

Agenda Item 9



 
Where the development cordon directly adjoins a neighbouring Local Planning Authority 

(LPA), the adjoining LPA's planning policies will apply on land within their boundary. 
 

 

Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and geodiversity 

The Council will support development which maintains, protects and enhances 

biodiversity across the Borough. Proposals for new development should minimise 

impacts on biodiversity and provide net gains in biodiversity where possible. Proposals 

will be expected to improve access to important biodiversity areas, and will be required 

to show full details of measures to achieve this in the form of a suitable Management 

Plan. Consideration must be given to the Council's Biodiversity and Development 

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and any other relevant guidance. 
 

 

Designated biodiversity and geodiversity sites 
 

 

There is a presumption in favour of the preservation and enhancement of sites of 

international and national importance. Development proposals that would cause a direct 

or indirect adverse effect on any site of international or national importance, including its 

qualifying habitats and species will only be permitted where the Council and relevant 

partner organisations are satisfied that: 
 

 

.;    The adverse effect cannot be avoided (for example through locating the 

development on an alternative site); and 
 

 

.;     Any adverse impacts can be mitigated for example through appropriate      habitat 

creation, restoration or enhancement on site or in another  appropriate location, in 

agreement with the Council and relevant partner  organisations, via  planning 

conditions, agreements or obligations. 
 

Where mitigation is not possible or viable or where there would still be significant 

residual harm following mitigation, compensation measures should be made to provide 

an area of equivalent or greater biodiversity value. Compensation should be secured 

through planning conditions or planning obligations. 
 

 

Special compensation considerations apply in the case of Natura 2000 sites. If harm to 

such sites is allowed because the development meets the above criteria and imperative 

reasons of overriding public interest have been demonstrated, the European Habitats 

and Wild Birds Directive requires that all necessary compensatory measures are taken 

to ensure the overall coherence of the network of European Sites as a whole is 

protected. 
 

 

Local wildlife sites and geological designations such as County wildlife sites, wildlife 

corridors and Local Geological Sites (LGS) will be afforded a high degree of protection 

from potentially harmful development, unless a strong socio-economic need can be 

demonstrated and the development cannot be situated in a less sensitive location. 

 
 

 

Page 96

Agenda Item 9



Assessing the effects of development on biodiversity and geodiversity 
 

Proposals for new development which may result in significant harm to biodiversity must 

be accompanied by appropriate surveys, undertaken by a suitably qualified person, to 

identify the potential effects of development. In such cases, the mitigation hierarchy, as 

referenced in the Council's Biodiversity and Development SPD should be applied and it 

must be demonstrated that avoidance measures have been considered and justification 

for ruling these out must be given. Where significant harm is avoidable, it should be 

adequately mitigated, or as a last resort, compensated for. 
 

 

Where mitigation is required in the form of species translocation, the Council will work 

with partners to identify suitable sites for translocation. 
 

 

Where there is evidence to suspect the presence of protected species, the planning 

application should be accompanied by appropriate, up-to-date surveys carried out at the 

correct time of year for the particular species assessing their presence to ensure that the 

proposal is sympathetic to the ecological interests of the site. 
 

 

Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features 

New development should conserve and enhance biodiversity features, and proposals for 

new development should be submitted with landscaping proposals, including a 

Management Plan, which show how existing trees, riparian corridors/trees, hedgerows, 

 ponds and other wildlife features will be integrated into the development. Landscaping  

proposals should also include new trees and other planting of suitable species for the 

location to enhance the landscape of the site and its surroundings as appropriate. 
 

 

Trees which positively contribute to the visual amenity and environmental value of that 

location will be protected. New development should not result in the loss of or damage 

to ancient woodland or veteran or aged trees outside woodland. 
 

 

Where the conservation of biodiversity features cannot be achieved, the applicant must 

justify their loss. Where the Council is satisfied that the loss is adequately justified, 

replacement trees, hedgerows, ponds and other wildlife features will be required. 
 

 

Proposals which include landscaping proposals, replacement of wildlife features, new 

wildlife features, or which integrate existing wildlife features into the development, will be 

required to demonstrate that measures will be put in place to manage these features as 

appropriate, including the use of suitable legal agreements. 

Page 97

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)
	8 Planning Applications (Booklets attached)
	2019/0683 Plot 11 Mill Lane
	Consultation responses
	Untitled
	Recommendation

	2019/0700 Paddock 5 Haggs Land
	Consultation responses 
	Officers Report
	Recommendation

	2019/0481 74 Abbey Road
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report
	Recommendation

	Policy Appendix
	Index 

	9 URGENT ITEM - Planning Application Book 2
	2019/0664 Kimberly Clark
	Consultation Responses
	Officers Report
	Proposal 
	Conclusion
	Recommendation 
	Appendices of Policies 


